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1.. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background Information

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) was established as a State Corporation
under the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Act of 25th January 2013, as a successor

to the Kenya Medical Supplies Agency established under the State Corporations Act.

The Act gave KEMSA greater autonomy to run its affairs with clearly defined

functions. The Act also ensured the Authority's functions were in tandem with the

functions of devolved governments established under Article 176 of the Constitution
and Section6T of the Health Act,2017.

The Health Laws (Amendment) Act, no. 5 of 2019 amended the 2013 act to provide for
collaboration between KEMSA and county governments. The Health Laws
(Amendment) Act further provides that national and county health facilities would
refer to KEMSA for their health products and technologies.

(b) Principal Activities

The Authority's Core Mandate as defined in the Act is fo Procure, Warehouse and Distribute
health products and technologies to public and other health facilities in Kenya. This is in
support of the broad health sector objectives of improving the health and access to proper
healthcare of Kenyan people. KEMSA supply chain activities encompass a range of functions,

including forecasting and quantification. The Act further provides a framework through
which KEMSA can collaborate and work with the national referral hospitals and the county
governments by being the national strategic stock reserve and prescribes essential health
packages.

"A world class prooider of health supply chain solutions that saae and t-ransform

liaes".

"To prouide reliable, affordable and quality health products, technologies, and supply
chain solutions for improaed health care".

2
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F Strategic Pillars of the Authority
7. Einancial Stewatilship: Strengthened financial and risk management.

2. Customer Focrs: Efficiently meet Customer needs for enhanced customer
satisfaction.

3. lnternal Business Ptocesses and Systems: Improved internal systems through
digital solutions.

4. Strategic Paftnerships: Selecion and cooperation with strategic partners for
attainment of mutually beneficial goals.

5. Leailership and Goaemance. Dynamic and efficient leadership, governance and
management.

6. lnnoaation aflil techrrolory: Intelligent deployment of technologies that will play
an important roie in making the healthcare supply chain more effective and
efficient.

(c) Key Management

The Authority's day-to-day management is under the following Structure

- Board of Directors

- The Chief Executive Officer

- Management

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30

June 2021 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

1 Dr. Jonah Manjari Mwangi Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Edward Njoroge Ag. Chief Executive Officer/Director - Operations

3 Mr. Iiredrick Wanyonyi Director- Legal

4 Mr. Charles Juma Ezekiel

3
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5 Mr. Eliud Mureithi Director, Commercial Services

6 Mr. Douglas Onyancha Head, KEMSA-USAID MCP Program

7, Ms. f'eresa Mute Internal Audit Manager

8. Mr. Waiganjo Karanja Director Finance & Strategy

9 Ms.Ebla Mohamed Director Human Resource & Administration

10 Ms. Caroline Wanjiru Ogongi Finance Manager

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Board of Directors of the Authority comprises of the Chairperson who is appointed by

the President, the CEO is appointed by the Board of Directors in concurrence with the Cabinet

Secretary of Health, the Principal Secretary of the Ministry for Health or her representative,

the Principal Secretary to the National Treasury or his representative, a person recruited by

the Council of Governors and appointed by the Cabinet Secretary for Health, three members
who are not public officers with diverse medical supply chain management experience

appointed by the Cabinet Secretary-Ministry of Health.

All non-executive directors are independent of management of the Authority. The Board has

varied and extensive skills in the areas of medical supply chain management and business

management.

The Board meets quarterly and has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it and which are

attended to as per the board work plan. Board papers are circulated well in advance of the

Board meetings by the secretary to the board. The key function of the Board is to guide and
control the performance and management of the affairs of the Authority.

This includes the duty to ensure that the functions of KEMSA are carried out in an efficient,
transparent and ethical manner and that no particular person or body is given undue
preference or subjected to any undue disadvantage. The Board considers and advises the

Cabinet Secretary for Health on the development and maintenance of Medical Supply Chain
policy framework and the objectives of KEMSA. It considers and approves general

performance targets, both strategic and business, and the annual budgets of the Authority.

The Board has appointed four (4) standing Committees to which it has delegated certain
responsibilities with the chairpersons of the Committees reporting to the full board.
Operations of each committee are defined in terms of reference approved by the board. The

composition of the standing Committees during the year is as set out below.

4
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Finance, Strategy & Development

Committee

Human Resources Committee Audit and Risk Committee Supply Chain Committee

Composition Composition Composition Composition

Directors and the CEO Directors and the CEO Directors and the Internal
Audit Manager

Directors and the CEO

Main Function Main Function Main Function Main Function

Review and monitoring of KEMSA
financial position, accounts, financial
statements and statutory reports,

Consideration of audit matters arising out
of KEMSA's financial position and
statements. examine the recommended
structural developments including ICT
installations and make appropriate
recommendations

Consideration of human
resources and administration
matters that require to be

considered by the Board
including recruitment,
promotions, discipline and
welfare of staff.

Consideration of matters
relating to audit queries,
audit management letters
and quality assurance of
systems and processes,
including review of risk
management.

Oversee QA & control systems,
warehousing & distribution of
medicines, customer services,
co-ordinate updates of EMMS
list, commodities procurement
systems compliance to the law,
ICT policy, accuracy of stock

Frequency of meetings per annum Frequency of meetings per
annum

Frequency of meetings per
annum

Frequenry of meetings per
annum

5
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NOTE:

1. CM -Current Member
2. FM- Former Member

Quarterly or on need basis Quarterly or on need basis Quarterly or on need basis Quarterly or on need basis

Chairperson Chairperson Chairperson Chairperson

Linton Kinyua Nyaga (Current chair)

Prof. Timothy Waema (exited in April,
2021)

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani
(Current chair)

Dr. Dorothy Aywak (exited in
April,2027)

Dr. Robert
(Current chair)

Nyarango

Joel Onsare Gesuka (exited
in April,2021)

Capt. (Rtd) Lawrence Wahome
(Current chair)

Dr. Bibiana Njue (exited in
Aprrl,2021)

Members Members Members Members

Mary Atieno Awino
Terry Ramadhani

Isaac Oder (CM)

Representative of SCAC

Edward Njoroge

Evans Cheruiyot

Dr. Josphat Mbuva
Dr. Robert Nyarango

Isaac Oder (CM)

Representative of SCAC

Edward Njoroge

Evans Cheruiyot

Mary Atieno Awino
Capt. (Rtd) Lawrence
Wahome

Isaac Oder (CM)

Representative of SCAC

Edward Njoroge

Teresa Mute

Dr. Josphat Mbuva
Linton Nyaga Kinyua

Isaac Oder (CM)

Representative of SCAC

Edward Njoroge

Evans Cheruiyot
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(f) Headquarters

13 Commerciai Street, Industrial Area,
P .O Box 47715 - 00100 ,
NAIROBI

(g) Contacts

Telephone:
Email:
Website

+254 20 3922 000
info@kemsa.co.ke
www.kemsa.co.ke

(h) Bankers

1. National Bank of Kenya
Harambee Avenue
P. O. Box 72866 - 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA

2. NCBA
Mara Road, Upper Hill
P. O. Box 44599 - 00100

NAIROBI, KENYA

3. Kenya Commercial Bank
Industrial Area
P. O. Box 18031 - 00500
NAIROBI, KENYA

4 Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Enterprise Road
P. O. Box 17928 - 00500

NAIROBI, KENYA

5. Equity Ban-k. Ltd
Westlands Supreme Centre
P. O. Box 751.04 - 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA

(i) (l) Principal Legal Advisers

The Attorney General
State law of{ice, Harambee Avenue
P. O Box 40112 - 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA
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2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who served the Authority during the year were as follows;

M"ry Chao Mwadime
DOB28/0e/Le56
N on-Exeartia e Director
Chairperson - Board of Directors
Effective 30th April 2021
(PhD-Business Leadership ongoing, MBA,
BCOM-Business Administration /
Marketing)

Work Experience: Senior acquisition & assistance

specialist - Consultant with XLA, Senior
acquisition & assistance specialist
USAID/Liberia Mission, Senior acquisition &
assistance specialist - USAID/East Africa,
Nairobi Mission, Chief Supplies Office - Kenyatta
National Hospital, Project Manager - Kenya
Railways Corporation, Chief Supplies Officer -
Kenya Railways Corporation among other ranks

Captain (KAF Rtd) Lawrence M. Wahome
DOB 2yt7/1e68
N on-Executia e D irector
Effective 30th April 2021
(Masters, Public Proc. & Sustainable Devp.
MBA-Total Quality Management, Post
Graduate Cert-Logistics & international
Transport, LLM-Public Procurement Law &
Policy Devlp, BB Logistic & Supply Chain
Management, Dip-Purchasing & Supply
(CIPS), DIP-Aeronautical Navigation).

Work Experience: Head of Supply Chain Unit -
UN WFP Rwanda Country Office, Kigali, Head
of Procurement Unit - UN WFP Syria Arab
Republic Country Office, Damascus, Head of
Procurement - UN WFP Afghanistan Country
Office, Kabul, Head of Logistics Unit - Mazar-e-
Shariff Area Office, Northern region, UNWFP,
Afghanistan. Head of Logistics Unit - UN WFP,
Burundi Country Office, Bujumbura, Head of
Logistics Unit - El Fasher Area Office, Northern
Darfur region, UNWFP Sudan Country Office,
Head of Logistics Unit -Herat Area Office,
Western region, UNWFP Afghanistan Country
Office, Mission Logistician - MSF-Holland,
Kandahar Office, Afghanistan, Mission Flight
Operations - UN WFP, Lokichogio. Flight
Navigator/OC Air Movements - Kenya Air
Force (Moi Airbase)

8
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Terry Kiunge Ramadhani MBA, CIPD
DOB 16/01/1980
N ofi-Exeqttioe Director
30th April 2021 - sth March 2022
(Professional Human Resources Society of
Tanzania, Professional Membership &
working towards Charter status, Certified
Prince 2 Practitioner, LlB-ongoing, MBA-
HRM, Bachelor of Education).

Work Expedence: Director, Human Resources
and Academic Support, Director, Human
Resources and Global Organizational Change
Lead for Electronic Health Records (EHR) - Aga
Khan Universiff, Senior Director, Presiden(s
Delivery Unit - Government of Kenya, Regional
Leader, Human Resources, EA, Aga Khan
University, Head, Human Resources and Acting
Company Secretary Opportunity International,
Human Resources Coordinator Liverpool City
Council Gladstone House Secure Children
Home, Liverpool, Youth Programme Officer
Liverpool City Council Gladstone House Secure
Children Home, Liverpool

Linton Nyaga Kinyua
DOB 24fl1,/1962
N on-Ex e cutio e Dir e ct or
Effective 30th April 2021
Member (CPS(K), Member CPA(K), MBA" BBA-
Accounting, Dip. Business Management)

Work Experience: Financial Controller - DHL
Global International, Nairobi, Group Finance
Director - C)cean Freight (E.A.) Limited, Mombasa,
Director Finance, PersonneI and Administration -
Ocean Freight (E.A.) Limited

Fred Wanyonyi
Directot-Legal
Executiae Member
LLB, DIP. Law, ICS Non-member
Work Expeience: Company Secretary-Nzoia
Sugar, Advocate-Wetangula & Co. Advocate-
P.L. Nalo & Co. Advocates, Pupil-Simiyu
Wetangula & Co Advocates
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Robert Nyarango
DOB 30/09/7974
N on-Exeantiu e D itect or
Effective 30th April 2021
(Member-Association for Healthcare Quality,
Certified Processional in Healthcare Quality &
Safety by the Healthcare Quality Certification
Commission, MSC-CIinical Pharmacy, MBA-
Strategic Management, Post Craduate Dip.-
Health System Management).

Work Experience: Chief Executive Officer,
Director of Outpatient Services, Director of
Quality and Safety, Chief Pharmacist /Pharmacy
Operations Manager, Clinical Pharmacist -
Getrude's Children's Hospital

Mary Atieno Awino
DOB25/r4L964
N on-E xe cutia e D ir ect o r
Alt. to PS, The National Treasury
(MBA, BCOM, Dip-Supply Chain Mngt.
Part III)
Work Expeience'. Currently Deputy director,
supply chain management/ public
procurement department, National Treasury.
Deputy head of procurement unit Ministry of
Health (Feb 2004 to Nov 2008) Deputy head of
procurement unit Ministry of health (2003-
2004). Head of procurement National Assembly
(79e2--1996)

Dr. jonah Manjari
DOBOT/02,t7969
Chief Executiae Olficer (upto 13th May 2022)
Executizte Member
(M. Med (ENT, H&N Surgery). (UoN), MBChB (U.O.N) MBA-
GLOBAL (USrU)

Work Experience; Counry Executiwe Committee Member (\4inistet of
Health Services)-I(iambu & Nakuru County, Medical Superintendent &
Disttict Medical Serqices Officet-Ministry of Medical Services; Thika
Level 5 Hospital, EN'I Specialist Surgeon; Midstry of Health - Garissa
& Meru Level 5 Hospitals, Post Graduate Seniot House Officer-
Kenyatta National Hospital, Seniot Medical Offrcer- Thika District
Hospital

I
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. John Kabuchi
Ag. Chief Executive Officer

28(h December 2021. - 27th NIay 2022

Dr. Jarred Nyakiba
Ag. Operations Director
Effective 10'h Feb 2022

Dr. Silas Njeru
Ag. Procurement Director

Effective TOth Feb 2022

Dr. Evans Imbuki
Ag. Programs Director
Effective lOth Feb 2022

Ms Tecla Le1

Ag. Warehouse Manager
Effective 10th Feb 2022

E

LL

32

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani MBA, CIPD
Chief Executive Officer
Effective 13th May 2O22
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Vainora Kerubo
Ag. HR Manager

Effective 10th Feb 2022

Hilary Tioni
Ag. ICT Manager

Effective 10th Feb 2022
MDY, MSS, Security +, BCFE,CFcE,cEH

Ms. Silvia Kanyi
Ag. Legal Officer

Effective l0tx Feb 2022

CPA Geoffrey Mochache
Principal Auditor

MCOM, BCOM, CPAK CPSP

!2

Dr. Simon Wahome
Ag. Commercial Director

Effeetive l0th Feb 2022
Pharmacy Specialist, Master of Pharmacy

CPA James Macharia
Ag. Finance Manager
Effective TOth Feb 2022

MBA" BBA" CPAK

I
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K€ITI.:I
Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021 a

Dr. Jonah Manjari
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Edward Njoroge
Ag Chief Executive

Effective 14th August 2020

Mr. Charles Juma
Procurement Director

Mr. Eliud Muriithi
Director, Commercial Services

Mr. Douglas Onyancha
Head of KEMSAT/USAID
MCP Program

Mr. Waiganjo Karanja CPA, CISA
Director, Finance and Strategy

I
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Ms. Ebla Mohamed
Director, Human Resource & Admin

Dr. George Walukana
Ag Director Commercial Services
Effective August 14th 2020

Ms. Teresa Mute
Internal Audit Manager

Mr. Fred Wanyonyi
Director, Legal

Mr. Edward Buluma
Ag Director Procurement
Effective August 14th 2020

Ms. Caroline Anunda (CPA)
Finance Manager
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4. CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to present to you KEMSA's performance

for the financial year ended 30s June 2021.

The Mandate of Kenya Medical Supplies Authority is to Procure, Warehouse and Distribute Medical
Supplies and drugs for prescribed Public Health Programs, the National Strategic Stock reserve,

Prescribed Essential Health Packages and National Referral Hospitals. KEMSA manages suppiy chain of
medical comrnodities from suppliers to health facilities, and the Authority prides itself in its great

Milestone of last mile delivery. The existing distribution network does delivery on a last mile basis to

over 8,000 facilities across all the 47 counties. We undertake door step deliveries to facilities as far as Faza

Island which is two hours by speed boat from Lamu and Kalacha town in the middle of Chalbi desert in
Nothern Kenya. This distribution network serves the primary healthcare segrnent and is able to reach

over 60% of the Kenya popuiation. We have an opportunity to increase this reach tfuough an enhanced
service delivery in the secondary healthcare segment through the referral hospitals and other specialty
facilities.

The Board undertakes to perform its responsibilities diligently and strives to provide the required
leadership to support the Authority's key strategic pillars of; Financial Stewardship, Customer Focus,

lnternal Business Processes and Systems, Strategic Partnerships, Leadership and Governance anchored
in the Strategic Plan 2079-2024. The Strategic Plan will give stimulus to the ongoing infrastructure
expansion such as the new modern warehouse and office block as well as redesigned distribution centers

in Mombasa and Kisumu-

The Upgrade will involve Automation of the Centers to enable them to provide Warehousing, Picking,
distribution and order processing services. The regional distribution centers is a strategic objective of the

Authority in a bid to take services closer to the customer and improve Order Turnaround time to public
health facilities, KEMSA undertook a Strategic Network Optimization assessment of its business and is
implementing the recomrnendatiors

Highlights of Business Performance

KEMSA revenue reduced by 22tt/o from Kshs 4.698 Billion in Fy 2019-2020 to Kshs 3.584 Billion in FY-

2020-2027, whereas operational expenditure increased by 8% from Kshs 3.035 Billion to Ksh. 3.282

Billion. The decrease in revenue is athibuted to reduction in UHC sales.

KEMSA's performance conkact score in Fy 2020-2021, as evaluated by the Directorate of Performance

Contracting was 3.0209 (Very Good).
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Corporate Covernance:

The Board of Directors and the management of the Authority shall endeavor to see to it that the Authority
continues to execute its mandate, and particularly in playing its role towards improvement of healthcare
in Kenya, in light of the Nafional Government's main pillar of Universal Health Coverage. We will
continue to count on the invaluable support from the Ministry of Health, The National Treasury, the
strategic partners and all our stakeholders.

As part of enhanced corporate governance, KEMSA Board has been fuiiy reconstituted. I welcome the
appointments of Cpt. (KAF Rtd) Lawrence M. Wahome, Terry Kiunge Ramadhani, Linton Nyaga Kinyua
and Robert Nyarango to the KEMSA Board.

I wish to appreciate the former KEMSA Board Memtrers; Sen. Kembi Gitura, Mr. Joel Gesuka, Dr. Bibiana
Njue , Dr. Dorothy Aywak and Prof. Timothy Waema whose terms of service ended during the financial
year 2020 / 2021, for their invaluable commitment, dedication and contribution to the Authority.

KEMSA's Role in the Realization of the Government 's Big Four Asenda

KEMSA as a state corporation is in a unique position to deliver this constitutional promise to the people
of Kenya even as Kenya strives to meets its obligations to the global community. KEMSA's role in UHC
is anchored under its key mandate of procurement, warehousing and distribution of essential medicines
and medical supplies. KEMSA's mandate under UHC is thus to consistently supply quality and
affordable essential medicines and medical supplies.

The need for continuous supply of good quality health products and technologies is paramount to the
success of the UHC agenda. As the Government Health commodity supplier for UHC, KEMSA has the
ability to supply quality, effective and affordable Essential Medicines and Medical Supplies (EMMS) in a
timely manner and meet the increased demand by improved demand predictability.

Covid 19 Pandemic Preparedness

We are going through unprecedented times due to the Coronavirus (COVID-19). Amidst the
unprecedented global crisis of the paldemic, KEMSA has made efforts to procure Health Products and
Technologies against widespread supply chain disruptions following the effects and response to Covid-
19 in line with our mandate. The Authority has actively been involved in sourcing for Covid-19 (HPTs)
to mitigate the spread of the pandemic for equipping the health workers with requisite assorted personal
protective equipment. As a state corporatior; KEMSA has closely collaborated with Ministry of Health
(MOH) and other Government agencies involved in the fight against Covid 19 to facilitate timely delivery
of products to the doorstep of targeted health facilities, isolation centert testing laboratories, surveillance
teams, National Referral Hospitals, The National Comrnand Center, Emergency command Centers
amongst other institutions involved in the fight against the pandemic.

15
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Challenges faced by the Authority;

Debt management remained a big task for the Authority especially the long outstanding debt owed

by County Governments and development partners posing liquidity risk.

Change in treatment guidelines creating a big risk of expired iterns in our stock hoiding. Transitioning
to the new heatment guidelines took place immediately without consideling existing stocks in our

reserve.

Reduced GOK funding for the National Project by the Ministry of Health and The National Treasury

leading to delays in achieving the target completion of the National Commodity Storage Centre.

Erratic Ordering by the County governments due to high debt with the Authority leading to reduced

shelf lives of HPTs in stock and in extreme circumstances expiries.

The Covid-19 Pandemic that has disrupted the supplies of key HPTs especially from Asia, The USA

and Europe.

USAID/KEMSA MCP project came to an end in May 2021.The exit of USAID has contributed to a
drop in KEMSA fees. The Project contributed an average of 36o/o of KEMSA's income each year.

Negative public perception on KEMSA as a brand

KEMSA Reforms

The Board recognizes that the Authority has had challenges and currently the Authority is undergoing

reforms on various areas of its operations. The roie played by KEMSA in the iives of Kenyans cannot be

over-emphasized. Among the basic essentials for human beings, good health is second to none.

Healthcare is therefore pivotal, not only to our development, but to our very existence. Therefore, it is
the Board responsibility to provide the required leadership in designing suitable plans and strategies that

will contribute to high and sustainable socioeconomic development.

The board is comrnitted to work closely with management, staff and all stakeholders to ensure that all
issues are dealt with and KEMSA's objectives are met. The Priority areas of reforms are;

Financiai, Governance & Risk Management
Procurement & Regulatory
Warehousing & Logistics Management
Donations & Tax Exemption Management
IT and Support Systems

KEMSA'S Future Outlook:
The focus of the Board remairs singular; to steer the Authority to sustainable stability and resilience. We

have adopted a multi-pronged shategy that includes:

KEJTL:I
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Ensure availability of affordable and quality Essential Health Products and Technologies (HPT)
at a1i Public Health Facilities in support of UHC and COVID-19 response;

Ensure that we meet an order flll rate of 90% and above for all orders placed in support of UHC
and COVID-19 response.

Ensure that we provide required Essential HPTs at the required time.
Ensure accessibility and reliability of HPT inlormation and data fot National and County
Planning and decision making in support of UHC and COVID-19 response.

MARY C AO MWADI
CHAIRPERSON - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3

4
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On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank our strategic partners, the National and County Governments, for
their continued support of our expansion effort. In addition, the Board recognizes the Authority's
management and staf{ for their professionalism, comrnitment and drive in executing the Authority's
mandate of deiivering timely, quality, and efficacious Health Products and Technologies to the last mile
oI the Republic of Kenya.
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5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
KEMSA Act has mandated the Authority to establish mechanisms that ensure efficiency,

effectiveness and sustainability in carrying out its mandate. To achieve this, the Authority has

rolled out its Strategic Plan 2019 - 2024 which is in its first year of implementation. The Plan

takes into consideration Kenya's Vision 2030; Medium Term Plan III which envisions to provide
"equitable and affordable health care at the highest standards. The plan also takes into
consideration the Sustainabie Development Goals No. 3 which seeks to ensure healthy lives and

promote wellbeing for al1 at all ages thereby thrusting the prorninence of citizen's health to the

forefront of responsibilities for all governments.

The management strives to offer excellent corporate performance that ensure delivery of better

services to Kenyans that eases the health burden. KEMSA achieves this through timely delivery
of high quality and affordabie Health Products and Technologies to public health institutions.

The Key activities for the Authority are;

Procure

The Authority sources for medical supplies centrally in order to ensure quality and enjoy

economies of scale that emanate from bulk procurement. The procurement procedures are

guided by the Public Procurement Regulations.

Warehouse

KEMSA's main supply chain center is in Nairobi. In addition, the authority has 2 regional

diskibution centers (Mombasa and Kisumu) and 6 regional warehouses (Kakamega, Eldoret,

Nakuru, Nyeri, Meru and Garissa) across the country to enhance flexibility and quick response

to customers' demand.

Distribute Medical Commodities and Medical Supplies

The Authority delivers medical supplies to the door step of each health facility in Kenya

consistently and efficiently. In partnership with experienced third-party carriers, KEMSA has set

up a robust distribution network with the capacity to access the last mile of all Public Hospitals,

Health Centers and Dispensaries countrywide.

KEMSA also distributes program commodities which at times are integrated with Essential

Medicines and Medical Supplies (EMMS). This includes reproductive health commodities,
nutritional food supplements, TB/Leprosy and ARV's. This is aimed at reducing distribution
costs and managing medical commodities within one suppiy chain resulting in greater reach and

efficiencies.

L9
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Role of KEMSA in Universal Health Coverage

KEMSA is the Government health commodities supplier for Universal Health Coverage mandate
with the following roles of implementing the UHC program.

. InJluence price reduction of Health Products and Technologies through reduced mark
ups

o Consistent supply of quality essential medicines and medical supplies
. Support iocal manufacturing of essential medicines and medical supplies
. Support the counties to ensure accurate forecasting and quantification
. Meeting counties needs through fulfilling requirements of Essential Drug List
o Monitor stock availability; to meet the growing needs of the counties
r Advocate order placement and prescription based on generic names
o Advocate for the enactment of regulations to operationalize PPADA to facilitate

multiple awards for critical tracer commodities
o Strengthen engagement with the counties to streamline ordering to avoid erratic

ordering.

To ensure that this mandate is implemented, KEMSA has collaborated with MoH to develop
Specifications for Essential Diagnostic Supplies (SEDS) April 2020 and Specifications for
Essential Medical Supplies (SEMS) were compiled and posted on the KEMSA website. The
Authority ensures that Continuous monitoring of stock availability since it keep the promise as

one stop shop for all medical commodities thus ensuring that there is a Continuous Supply of
accessible and affordable Health Product Technologies.

The Authority endeavors to ensure a Last mile distribution and has put in place mechanisms to
ensure optimum stock availability. This has been made possible by enhancing procurement from
local manufacturers, entering into arrangement with other public and FBOs procuring entities
as stop gap measure to bridge the gap, exploring contract manufacturing both locally and
internationally to improve availability and affordability whilst observing the procurement law,
entering into framework contracts with suppliers.

Non-Financial Performance

InF\ 2020-21,, The Average KEMSA Sales Order Fill Rate was 49% and 90% for Program orders
against a target of 90 and 98% respectively.

20
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The stock availability for KEMSA sales HPTs was low during the year, occasioned by challenges
in importation of HPTs and APIs due to boarder closure during the height of the COVID-19
pandemic.
During the year, UHC (input financing model) roll out was executed to completion

The Order turnaround time (OTT)- This is the time taken for KEMSA to fulfil Hospital orders
from date of order receipt at KEMSA to date of order delivery at facility (as per the Proof of
delivery). The average annual OTT for al1 Hospitals orders stood at 12.6. days against the target
of 7 days. The average OTT for Primary Health Facilities orders was 18.1 days against the target
of 10 days.

Financial Performance

KEMSA's total income for the year 2020-202L was Ksh 3.684 Billion against a target of Ksh 3.558

Billion representing 4olo performance above the target.

Total expenditure amounted to Ksh 3.282 Billion which was a 99.8o/o absorption of the
approved expenditure budget of Kshs 3.285 Billion.

The authority realized a surplus of Ksh 40 .70 Million whereas Capital Expenditure was Ksh.
964 Milion. The main capital expenditure cost relates project cost of the ongoing construction of
the National Comrnodity Storage Centre which is a Vision 2030 Flagship proiect.

The Authority received Ksh 125 Million as recurrent grant and none for development grant from
the Ministry of Health, however the authority expects continuous support from the GOK.

KEMSA has put in place well-defined policies aligned to relevant regulations and best practice,

and ensure alignment across the organisations. We are in the process of renewing some of these

policies and skuctures to allow for enhanced synergies across the organisation and ensure

accountability at all levels that will lead to effective control of operations within the organisation.
The Authority has developed and implemented the Business Continuity Plan whose objective is

to support the continuity of KEMSA's criticai business operations in the event of a disaster. The

policy is aimed at ensuring minimal inconveniences and potential disruption to stakeholder's
while ensuring proper crisis management and communication.

Financial year 2020-202L marked the final year (Year 5) of the KEMSA MCP contract with USAID.
The contract ended in May 202L. In the last four years, KEMSA MCP has operated a reliable
supply chain for HIV/AIDS, malaria and family planning National programs by providing
sufficient commodities to meet the country needs. Since inception the program has procured
commodities worth USD 454 million keeping the country on track in the achievement of the

90.90.90 UNTAID targets.

2L
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By end June 2020, the program was supporting 1.2 million. Since inception in October 2015, the
program has been a main revenue stream for the Authority by earning KEMSA Ksh 34.5 Billion
in reimbursement of Indirect costs, base and award fees.

KEMSA is currently in consultation with USAID for a possible extension/modification of the
contract. USAID has been the main source of funds in the fight against the HIV/AIDS pandemic
and Malaria without which, the gains would be lost.

The Authority has experienced challenges in debt collection specifically from the counties and
other various development partners posing liquidity risks to its operation. I appreciate our
continued partnership with the Ministry of Health and county Governments and acknowledge
receipts of long outstanding debt within the financial year.

Strategic Partnershi ps

KEMSA recognizes the key conkibution that its strategic partnerships make to the success of
implementation of its mandate and has entered into various MOUs with various strategic
partners. KEMSA has signed 29 MOUs with 29 County governments. These legal agreements are

in relation to the manner in which the authority provides Health Products and Technologies to
their respective facilities, and how the counties pay for the delivered Health Products and
Technologies. KEMSA also signed 2 MOUs with single/ private facilities; one with Maisha Poa

CBO and the second with Consolata Hospital in Kyeni.

Other strategic partners during the financial year included;

. United States Agency for International Development (USAID)-MCP

. World Bank

. The Global Fund
r United Nations International Children's Emergency Fund (UNICEF)
o AMREF Health Africa
. CDIC Kenya
o Clinton Health Access Initiative (CHAD
r Korea Foundation for International Healthcare (KOFIH)
o Elizabeth Giaser Paediatric AIDS Foundation (EGPAF)
o Other International Donors

o UNFPA
o ASCEND (Accelerating the Sustainable Control and Elimination of Neglected

Tropical Diseases)
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o Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation (BMGF)

o The KAIZEN Institute
o Association of Supply Chain Management (ASCM)

The Authority is working closely with Ministry of Health by reengineering its standard
operating procedures, polices and other management systems across the organization to ensure

that the processes are efficient and effective. Through a tripartite collaboration with the Ministry
of Health, our donor patners and the Authority, the Authority is now implementing priority
reforms that guarantee for end to end accountability. Reform priority areas are on the Iollowing
thematic areas;

1. IT and Systems Management.
ICT infrastructure is a key strategic priority and the Authority intends to put in place systems

that are will increase visibility across the supply chain and to strengthen IT controls. The KEMSA
LMIS and Warehouse Management Module will be fully integrated with the DHIS2 system and

the authority is engaging NASCOP to review the HCMP platform for HIV test kits and explore
possibilities of integration with DHIS2 to avoid double enLries. Some of the key process issues

identified that required system solutions are resolved:

Enhanced Order Management System: This is an ordering platform that will give counties

a better ordering experience as well as support KEMSA in more streamlined order
fu1fillment.

Proof of Delivery (POD) Mobile Application: This will support digitized and automated
proof of delivery in the distribution process.

Procurement System: A system to automate procurement end-to-end

K€,TTI.:I
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2. Financial, Governance & Risk Management
KEMSA finances are managed in accordance with the Public Finance Management 4c1,2072, as

applicable, and KEMSA's Finance and Accounting Manual (approved in March 2018). The

Authority in the recent year under review has been faced with liquidity risk posed by longer
collection days when compared to expectation of payable days. The Authority is working on
updating and enforcing a credit policy and also making necessary efforts on timely collection of
debts owed by counties and other development partners. The Authority is also reviewing its
cost allocation policy whose objective is to ensure the Authority's self-sustenance and capability
by assessing the adequacy of the fees charged by KEMSA on programs.
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3. Procurement

KEMSA procurement is undertaken in accordance with the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act 2015 and attendant regulations 2020 whose aim is to ensure fairness, transparency
and accountability. The Authority is leveraging on information technology-based processes that
focus on minimal human interventiory we are on course to raising our integrity levels. We are

also working closely with various oversight bodies to ensure that we provide constant checks on
our operating procedures and strengthen our governance and ethical standards. Learning from
the Covid-19 pandemic which necessitated emergency procurement outside of the standard
operating procedures, we have reviewed elements including emergency procurement
guidelines. These guidelines also focus on the procedures for contracts management and
supplier performance measurement and management.

4. Warehouse and Logistics Management

The Authority is working to optimise and ensure that we have full leverage of our unique selling
proposition. By lar, we are the best resourced and placed Health Products and Technologies
(HPTs) supply chain solutions provider in sub-Saharan Africa. We provide reliable, affordable
and quality health products and supply chain solutions geared towards improving healthcare in
Kenya and beyond. Going forward, we are optimising our capabilities by adopting technological
solutions and focusing on service provision decentralisation to complement our procurement
capabilities. Technically, this means that we shall be integrating the full value chain to derive
cost and lead-time synergies. This also means working closely with 1oca1 manufacturers to
ensure that we undertake just in time procurement and maintain optimum inventories based on
accurate demand projections. We have a distribution network that does delivery on a last mile
basis to over 8,000 facilities across all the 47 counties.

The Authority is working on redesigned plan that will Integrate old and new warehouse and
upgrade the o1d warehouse to meet Good Warehousing Practicing Standards, automate picking
and dispatch, racking in Mombasa and Kisumu and fleet tracking. In addition KEMSA will
explore a simpie two-tiered distribution system with Programs, where regular distributions for
all counties are scheduled, with a provision for emergency orders and currently there is
integration of Malaria HPTs with EMMS purchased by county {acilities. Some TB and HIV orders
are dispatched together. Synchronize the reporting/ordering of the two programs to facilitate
distribution of both ARVs and TB medicines.
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5. DonationsManagement

The Authority together with the Ministry of Health, the Department of Health Products

Technologies is working on development of a donations portal intended to ease compliance and
operationalization of requirements of donations. A portal housed by MoH and appropriately
iinked to the systems of other stakeholders will be developed and the stakeholders sensitized on

the same. The portal will be complete with the relevant forms and templates on HPT donations
from reques! approval, delivery through to feedback.

The online donations portal will allow donors to register and upload both specific commodity
data and quality data for the product(s) proposed for donation. Through the donation's portal,
products will be technically approved and managed tfuough the entire process. A1l various
stakeholders will have required access to the donation's portal. The donations portal will become

the primary interface between donors and the various internal stakeholders which will include
Ministry of Health (MoH), Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA), Kenya Bureau of
Standards (KEBS), Pharmacy and Poisons Board (PPB), Pesticides Control Board (PCB), and any
other stakeholder required to approve or view donations.

As we undertake the reforms that will increase internal efficiencies, we are also listening
externally to customers to continue building a more sustainable relationship. Medical needs

cannot be postponed and it is important that we keep the supplies to health facilities flowing
continuously. As part of the Board and Management team's focus to foster consultative
engagements, we are reaching out to the Council of Governors to establish a liaison partnership
that al1ows us to effectively engage through established frameworks. We sincerely want to listen

to our stakeholders and ensure that we are flexible and dynamic enough to meet their unique
needs as a one -size -fits- all approach is not sustainable.

To this end I would like to appreciate our parent Ministry and the National Treasury for the

continued financiai and technical support. I also wish to greatly thank the Board under the

leadership of the Chair for their instrumental support in providing an enabling environment and
resources that facilitates the Authority in achieving its mandate and key strategic objectives. In
conclusiory I would like to thank our staff for their dedication in delivering this exemplary
performance

a
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6. STATEMENT OF KENYA MEDICAL SUPPLIES AUTHORITY'S PERFOMANCE

AGATNST PREDETERMTNED OBIECTTVES FOR W 2020/2021

Section 81 Subsection 2 (l) of the Public Finance Management Ac! 2012 requires the accounting officer to
include in the financial statement, a statement of the national governrnent entity's performance against
predetermined objectives.

KEMSA has 6 shategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the F\ 201,9 / 2020- 2023 / 2024.

These strategic pillars are as foliows:

Pillar 1: Financial Stewardship. Strategic Objectize 1: To ensure a robust {inancial framework for concrete
financial base-

Pillar 2: Customer Focus. Strategic Objectioe 2: To increase Market Share f rorn7)% to 90'k.

Pillar 3: Internal Business Processes and Systems. S trategic Objectiae 3:Tohave robust physical facilities,
internal business processes, systems and infrastructural upgrades that support business
growth.

Pillar 4: Strategic Partnerships. Strategic Objectiue 4: To develop and strengthen strategic aliiances and
partnerships for improved health supply chain systems.

Pillar 5: Leadership and Governance. Strategic Objectizte 5: To develop a dynarnic, transparent and
accountable governance structure

Pillar 5: Irurovation and Technology. Strategic Objectiae 6; To develop and maintain highly effective,
reliable and secure ICT solutions that enhance user experience in healthcare Service Delivery.

KEMSA develops its annual work plans based on the above 6 pillars. Assessment of the Board's
performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. KEMSA achieved its performance
targets set for theFY 20-19 / 2020 period for its 6 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Strategic Pillar Key Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

Pillar 1: Financial
Stewardship

To ensure a

robust financial
framework for
concrete
financial base.

a) Value of
Capitalizatio
n

b) Budget
Absorption
rate

c) Gross Profit
Margin

I. Increase revenue from
supply chain services.

II. Share Health Supply
Chain Expertise.

III. Enhance KEMSA
capitalization from KES 8

Billion to KES 10 Billion.
IV. Devetop and implement

cost management

mechanism.

a)8 Billion
b) 100%

c) 0.15

26
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V. Ensure Business

sustainability.

Pillar 2

Customer Focus
To increase

Market Share
from 70% to
90%.

a) % ofdebt
recovered

b) Value of sales

c) Customer
Satisfaction

rate.

I. Increase demand for
KEMSA Health Products

& Technologies.

II. Enhance commercial
performance.

tII. Improve marketing
communication.

.V. Improve customer

relationship
management.

V. Strengthen the capacity
of SSD.

a) 38% ofdebt
recovered.

b) Kes.8.223Billion
c) Customer

satisfaction
survey will be
carried out the
FY 202'.1/22.

Pillar 3: Internal
Business
Processes and
Systems.

To have robust
physical
facilities,
internal
business

Processes/
systems and
in-frastructural
upgrades that
support
business
growth.

a) % Order fill
rate

b) Order Turn
Around Time.(
for HosP and
RHFs)

i. Bi-annual Review of
Health Products and

Technologies demand -

strengthen selection,

forecasting and

quantification.
ii. Develop and update

appropriate products
and specifications in
collaboration with MOH
guidelines and

customers.

iii. Advocate for enactment

of new regulations for
the PPAD Act 2015 to

ensure the regulations
meet KEMSA's needs

iv. Strengthen quality
assurance processes and

systems throughout the

supply chain
v. Improve operational

performance
management

vi. Improve Order Fill rate

a) Average OFR
KEMSA EMMg
57.5%

Average OFR for
programmes- 98o/o

b) average order
turnaround time-
Hosp-12.6days

Average
Turnaround time
PHFs-18.1 days

27



K€ITI.:I
a

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30,2021

vll Improve order
turnaround time
Improve Staff welfare by
provision of amenities

and recreational

activities
Establish employee

assistance programmes

tIt

tx

To develop and
strengthen
strategic
alliances and
partnerships for
improved
health supply
chain systems.

a) Number of
new partners
on board

b) Number of
existing key
stakeholders

i) Develop and sustain

transformational
relationships with
development partners

ii) Leverage on the strength
of local manufacturers
and industry players.

iii) Build and sustain

partnerships with key

stakeholders

iv) Strengthencollaboration
with Ministry of Health
and the National
Treasury

a

b
)

)

2
8

P

partners

artners(stakeh
olders)

Pillar 5:

Leadership and
Governance

To develop a

dynamic,
transparent and

accountable

governance

structure

a) % increase in
employee
engagement
hdex

b) % Audit
Recommenda
tions
accepted and
Implemented

i) Provide effective
leadership and oversight

ii) Shengthenmanagement
systems for enhanced

efficiency
iii) Improve public opinion,

attitude and behavior of
key stakeholders

iv) To Strengthen Enterprise
Risk Management and

Strengthen BCM
v) Strengthencorporate

security risk and disaster

management

ProSrammes
vi) Review Human Capital

Management Systems

a) To be carried out
in 6e fy 2021 / 22

bl 77%

Pillar 4: Strategic
Partnerships
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vii) Strengthen Authority's

Culture
viii)Provide assurance on

internal controls,

governance and risk
management systems

ix) Review the KEMSA Act.

Pillar 6:

Innovation and
technology

To develop and

maintain highly
effective,

reliable and

secure ICT
solutions that
enhance user

experience in
health supply
chain Delivery.

a) No. of
functional
modules in
the ERP
implemented

b)%
Procurement
s done
through e-
Procurement

i) Offer automated
online enterprise facing and

customer facing services

ii) Enhance availability
of business systems and

ensure continuity of business

operations.

iii) Improve the

efficiency and availability of
ICT service delivery.
i.r) Proactively
identifying and mitigating
ICT risks, threats and

vutnerabilities.
v) Enhance compliance
with best practice

frameworks, standards,

procedures and governance

policies.

_ activity budgeted
under fy 21,/22.

80%

The Authority has cascaded the strategy and its activities downwards through the various departments.
It has developed a Performance Management Plan which details all KPIs (Strategic, Tactical and
Operational indicators) and responsible parties. This too has been cascaded and captured in the
individual Performance contracts with the authority.
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7. CORPORATEGOVERNANCESTATEMENT
Corporate governance is the process by which corporations are directed and controlled with the objective
of increasing stake/ shareholders value and satisfying them. This is achieved by establishing a system of
clearly defined authorities and responsibilities, which result in a system of internal controls that is

regularly tested to ensure ef{ectiveness.

KEMSA Board recognises that principles of good corporate governance, together with open, honest and
comprehensive business practices, are essential to protect the interests of al1 stakeholders. These

principles are integrated in the organisational culture to ensure that they become a way of life within the
Authority and further underpinned by the core values of customer focus, integrity, innovation,
professionalism, diversity and inclusivity. Governance principles are incorporated into all the KEMSA
structures, which are continuously reassessed and reviewed to ensure that compliance and best practices
are applied and practised.

At Kenya Medical Supplies Authority, the Board places a high degree of irnportance on maintaining a

sound control environment and applying the highest standards of business integrity and professionalism
in all areas of the Authority's activities. The Board has adopted the

Code of Best Practice for Corporate Govemance issued by the Centre for Corporate Governance (Kenya)
is used as the benchmark in developing the Authority's corporate governance principles. In addition,
KEMSA is in compliance with Code of Governance for State Corporations (Mwongozo) which offers
guidance to all state corporations on issues of governance.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Authodty and conducts the business and operations
of the Authority with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted corporate practices, based on
hansparency, accountability and responsibility.

Board of Directors

The composition of the Board is set out on page 8-10. The Authority's Board of Directors comprises of
the Chairperson who is appointed by the President, the Chief Executive Officer who is appointed by the
Board of Directors in concurrence with the Cabinet Secretary of Health , the Principal Secretary of the
Ministry of Health or her representative, the Principal Secretary to the National Treasury or his
representative, a person recruited by the Council of Governors and appointed by the Cabinet Secretary
for Health, three independent board members who are not public o{ficers with diverse skills and
experience in management or in the health sector who are appointed by the Cabinet Secretary. A11 non-
executive directors are independent oI management of the Authority.

The board consist of 9 members as presented below;
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3, l33vol

The directors' responsibilities are set out in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities. The directors are

responsible for the development of internal financial controls, which give assurance against material mis-
statements.

The Board Chair

The Chairperson provides the overall leadership to the Board without limiting the principle of collective
responsibility for Board decisions. She acts as the link between the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
and plays a lead role in consensus building between the Board members, the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management. The Board has delegated the authority for day-to-day management to the Chief
Executive Officer. It however retains the overall responsibility for decisions with regard to finances and
operations of the Authority.

Role and Function of the Board

The key function of the Board is to guide and control the performance and management of the affairs of
the Authority. The Board considers and advises the Cabinet Secretary for Heaith on the development and
maintenance of Medical Supply Chain policy framework and the objectives of KEMSA. In this regard the

main roles are;

a) Strategicmanagement

i) Approval of strategic plan, with armual updates, an annual operational plan

and budget and related corporate performance measures;

ii) Reviewing the progress and performance of the Authority in meeting these

lans and c rate o ectives;

31

Ketn-:l&

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021 o

r Female

r Male

6, 167%l



KelTl=t
a?,

a
Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30,2021

iii) In conjunction with managemenf taking account of changes in the business

environment, their potential impact on the Authority's strategies and operating environment and
responding to these changes where necessary;

iv) Approving key Authority policies and working with management in

establishing policies for strengthening the perforrnance of the Authority including ensuring that
Management is proactively seeking to build the business through areas such as innovation initiative,
technology, new products, performance improvement and the development of its business capital;

b) Corporate governance

i) Ensuring corporate accountability to the people of Kenya; the government of

Kenya and all the stakeholders of the Authority primarily through adopting an effective stakeholder
relations strategy, encouraging effective participation at events relevant to the Authority mission and,

through the Chairperson providing a link between the Authority and its stakeholders;

ii) Ensuring that the Authority adheres to high standards of ethical and

corporate behavior

iii) Ensuring that the Authority has appropriate risk management, internal

control and regulatory compiiance policies and procedures in place;

it) Ensuring the Authority establishes a corporate social responsibility policy

and acts in accordance with the policy

c) Key personnel management

i) Monitoring senior management's performance and strategy implementation;

ii) Lr line with Government guidelines appointment of the CEO, remunerating the CEO, formal
reviews of the CEO's performance, overseeing the development of the CEO and ensuring a

succession plan is in place for the CEO position;

ii| Delegating appropriate powers to the CEO, Management and Board Comrnittees to ensure the

effective day-to-day management of the business and monitoring the exercise of these

responsibilities;

it) Approving the corporate remuneration framework and the remuneration levels of senior

executives and all other levels
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v) Ensuring appropriate human resource systems are in place to ensure the well-being and effective
contribu tion of all employees.

d) Financial management

i) Approving the amual statutory financial statements ensuring they are true and fair and otherwise
conform with law;

ii) Ensuring the Authority's financial position is protected and is able to meet its debts and other
obligations when they {all due;

iii) Approving major capital expenditures, maior contracts, acquisitions and divestments;

iv) Approval of acquiring or selling patent rights, rights in registered trademarks, licenses or other
intellectual property rights of the Authority.

Board Membership and Attendance

The Board meets quarterly and has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it. Board papers are

circulated well in advance of the Board meetings by the secretary to the board.

Table 1: Board Membership and Attendance for the Current Directors for theF\ 2O2O-2027

l.Sen.Kembi
-Gitura

Appointed by
the President

Chairman
(till 28th

April,202'I

)

n/a n/a n/a n/a 13

2.Ms.Mary
Mwadime

Appointed by
the President

Chair
(from 30'h

Aprrl,202-l
n/a n/a n/a n/a 2
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Board
Member

Classification
Designati
on

Finance,
Strategy &
Developm
ent
Committee

Human
Resources
Committee

Audit and
Risk
Committe
e

Supply
Chain
Committe
e

Full
Board
Meeting
s

TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS
uULY2020-JUNE,2021)

10 7 5 5 16
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3. Mr
Benard
Ndung'u

Repre sentiflg
PS,ThC

National
Treaatry

Member(e
xited in

I n/a ) nfa 5

Process of appointment and Removal of Directors

Board structure, composition and method of appointing and removing directors are detailed section 5 of
the KEMSA Act 2013 and as amended thereafter.

Board Member Performance

The Board conducts an annual evaluation to appraise its performance. This evaluation is carried out in
accordance with the Board Evaluation Tool. The Board evaluation provides an opportunity for Board
members to identify strengths, collective ski11 gaps and individual areas of irnprovement. For the year
under review the Board Evaluation wi1l be conducted within the first quarter of financial yeat 20/21-.

4.Dr. Josphat
Mbuva

Representing

,MOH
Member 6 I n/a 5 16

5.Mr. George
Ombua

Representatioe of
SCAC

Member 4 )

5.Ms. Mary
Atieno
Awino

Repre senting
PS,ThC

N ational
Treaatry

Menrher 9 n/a 3 1 10

Joel7.Mr.
Gesuka

lndependent
Member
(Hn 28,n

r\pr11,2021
r/a 5 n/a 74

8.Dr.Bibiana
Njue

Independent

Member(ti
11 28rh

Aptil,2021

-l
6 n/a 5 13

9.Prof.
Timothy
Waema

Independent

Member(ti
ll 28'r'

April,2027
8 n/a n/a 72

10.Dr.Dorot
hy Aywak

lfidepefide t
Member
(tin 28th

AprtJ,202^l

n/a J 5 n/a

11.Ms.
Theodora
Gichana

Representatiae of
SCAC

Member 1 1
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Induction and training

The Board provides new Board members with an effective induction programme in order to familiarize
them with their responsibilities as directors, general principles of corporate governance and Board

practices. The induclion prograrune will also provide the Board member with an orientation of the

authority's strategic plans, financial status and policies, risk management, compliance programmes and
the Code of Conduct and Ethics. Under the year of review there two new board members that were taken

through the induction prograrnme.

Board Remuneration

Board members shall be remunerated for their services in accordance with the prevailing relevant
legislative provisions andf or guidance from the relevant authority. In line with best practice, Directors
are entitled to a sitting allowance for every meeting attended, iunch allowance, accommodation
allowance and mileage reimbursement where appiicable. In addition, the Chairperson is paid a monthly
honorarium.

Conflict of Interest

The board members are required to disclose real or potential conflict of interest to the Board at every
meeting and are excluded from voting on such areas. We confirm that there was no business transaction
that was transacted by the board in which any of the board members had disclosed a personal interest in
conflict with those of the Authority.

Board Charter

The authority has a Board Chatter in place which provides guidelines to the roles of the board and
responsibilities as well as functions and structures in a way that supports the members in carrying out
their strategic oversight function. The Charter does not replace or supersede any statutory laws and
regulations that govern the Authority.
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Financial year 2020 /2021, has seen KEMSA make remarkable strides with regard to ensuring the

continued execution o{ our mandate as outlined in the KEMSA Act of 2013, with stability seen across all
key business metrics. KEMSA Strategic Plan 2019-2024 will also give impetus to the ongoing
infrastructure expansion such a new modern warehouse and office block as well as redesigned

distribution centres in Mombasa and Kisumu.

The Authority has continued to prudently manage the financial resources and application of the same in
providing services to the people of Kenya in strict compliance with Constitution of Kenya 2010, the Public

Finance Management Act and related regulations as well as Treasury Circulars issued from time to time.

In compliance with the Public Finance and Management Ac! the Authority did the following:

1I

111

Submission of Quarterly Financial Statements to the national Treasury by the 15th day of
the next following quarter
Submission of the Performance contracting Evaluation Reports to the National Treasury,

inspectorate of State Corporation and the Ministry of Health within by the 15th day of the

next following quarter
KEMSA Submitted its budget to National Treasury through the Ministry of Health by 31"t

of laruary 2020.

Submjssion of Annual Procurement Plan by 15th August 2020.

Compliance with other circulars from National treasury issued in Fy 2020 / 2021,

lv.

Financial Highlights

KEMSA's total revenue for the financial year 2020-21was KES 3.684 Billion which is composed of grants
from the Ministry of Health of Ksh 125 Million, Net sales of Ksh 1.317 Billion, supply chain fees of Ksh
1.543 Billion, Interest income o{ Ksh 516 Million and other incomes of Ksh 75.5 Million.
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Sales of Service

KEMSA earned KSh. 1.543 Billion from sale of procurement, warehousing and distribution services from
key strategic partners. 60%o of these earnings came from Globai fund, 25o/o frorn USAID. The distribution
of sales services for the year is as shown below;
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The highest sources of revenue in the year 2020-2021 came from supply chain fees at Ksh 1.543 BiIIion at
42u/o lollowedby Net sales at Ksh. 1.265 Billion at 3604, with other income and government grant being
t9o/o and 3o/o rcspectively.

REVENUE LINE PROPORTION

r GRANTS

. NET SALES

r SUPPLY CHAIN FEES

OIHER INCOMES

Expenditure Absorption Rate

During the financial year ended 30th June, 2021, the Autlodty's recurrent expenditure amounted to Kshs
3.277 Billion against a target of Kshs 3.285 Billion. Translating into 99.8% absorption of the total funds
allocated while Capitai Expenditure amounted to KSh 964 Million against a target of KSh 1.120

translating into 860lo absorption.

38

Budget versus Actual

zo
J
E

4,000

3,s00

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

INCOME RECURRENT EXPENDITURE

I BUDGET t ACTUAL

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

3,559 3,684

3,286 3,2a2

I,t20
964

tgv

42%

36%

,v



KEJTL:I
. aa,

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

S al es reo enue an aly sis :

KEMSA's Sales revenue amounted to Kshs 8.2 Billiory with a cost of sales oI Kshs 5.91 Billion. The gross

profit was Ksh 1.32 Billion. The realized sales revenue were siightly above target. There was however a

depletion of the counties drawing rights on UHC funds and a decrease in disbursement of exchequer

release to the counties resulting to low sales orders.

The UHC sales for FY 2020-202], was Ksh, 4,155 Billion representing 51 % of the total turnover, while
EMMS sales were Ksh. 4.068 Billion Representing 49% of the total sa1es. FY 2020-2-L turnover reduced
by 227, when compared to FY 2019-2020 turnover.

The Authority's Current assets reduced by Ksh. 3,785 Billion mainly attributed to decrease in Cash and
Cash equivalents on UHC funds and tied up capital on inventory.
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lnformation and Communication T echnology

The authority has embraced technology for operational efficiency and effectiveness in the achievement of
its mandate. During the year under review, the Authority fully operationalized, the Logistics
Management Information systems (LMIS) for both Universal Health Coverage (UHC) and Essential
Medicine and Medicai Supplies (EMMS). LMIS is a computer system used by the counties for ordering
medical comrnodities. The LMIS is an e-platform that enables county health facilities to accesses stock
status at the KEMSA warehouse, place orders online and access reports online. Approvals are done within
the LMIS system. The LMIS systems removed paper in the ordering processing and enhanced the order
turn-around ring and management of Universal Healthcare commodities.

During the year the Authority implemented a Wide area network in Kisumu connecting Kisumu with
Embakasi warehouse. This has enabled visibility of stock between the two warehouses and efficient
processing of orders.

During the year under review the Authority implemented an E-Board Management Systems to automate

the operations of the Board and enhance its efficienry. The system will enable the Board to management
meeting effectively, with the advantage of reducing paperwork and enhancing remote attendance

capabilities thus reducing traveling and printing.

Business Process Engineering is central to process irnprovement in the Authority. The authority has

embarked in process improvement initiatives with the airn of enhancing business efficiency. The

enhancements are ongoing.

KEMSA's Risk Management Strategy

The Board and Management of KEMSA have identified that the achievement of its Visioo Mission and
Objectives (strategic and operational) requires a coordirnted and structured way of identifying and
managing events impacting on the Authority. One of the key strategic management tools is risk
management. KEMSA Board and Management has identified the following as the top KEMSA Corporate
Risks.

The risks highlighted below should not be considered a complete narration of all risks and uncertainties
that KEMSA may face: -

Risk Source Mitigation
I Loss of key partners

Political environment
Inadequate Stakeholders
management and engagement
Negative publicity
Poor performance

Enhance good corporate
governance
Enhance stakeholders'
management
Enhance Corporate
communication
Implement strategies for
improving performance

40

No.



Ketn-:l
o

2. Cyber risks, data management
and system risks ancl ICT
inadequacies

r Inadequate ICT security and system
surveillance

. Failure to adhere to ICT and
Information security policy

Liquidity and cash flow
challenges to meet mandate and
obiectives

. Inadequate financial plaruring
r Weak budgetary control processes
r Inadequate or inefficient Financial

Controls
. Non-Compliance with PFM act and

other regulations
r Weak Governance structures
. Delay in customer debt payment

o Develop and implement
financial planning policies

. Implement budget and
control policies

. Enhance good corporate
governance

. Review credit control
measures

. Comply with PFM act and
other regulations

4 Non-competitive HPTs prices r Default method of
(open tender)

procurement

. Procuring from agents

. Price fixing

. Market survey

. Use competitive methods of
procurement

Disruptions
operations

of. KEMSA's

. Unforeseen events

. Implement Business
Continuity Management

6 Negative public perception on
KEMSA's brand

. Negative Media reports and
Coverage

r Poor service delivery
. Corruption and Ethics perception
. Breakdown in communication

among top, middle and low levels
within the organization

. Staff dissatisfaction

. Media training

. Implement targets based
performance

. Implement corruption
prevention measures

. Improve in hformation flow
o Develop and implement staff

motivation programs

7 Non-compliance with
regulatory and other
standard requirements

tegal,
globat

o Lack of awareness of Standards
and requirements

. Changes in legal and regulatory
environrnent

. Budgetary constraints

. Training and sensitization
r Develop financial plarming

policies

4L
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. Implement Cyber security
surveillance tools

. Implement ICT
Information security policy

. Implement new
technologies
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Operational inefficiencies in
procurement, warehousing and
distribution process.

I Negative staff attitude
r Erratic ordering patterns from

Counties
r Bureaucracies in processes
. Prolonged procurement cycle

. Implement activity based
budget

o Implement change
management

t Reengineering procurement

Process

9. ENVIRONMENTALANDSUSTAINABILITYREPORTING

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) exists to Lransform lives. This is our purpose; the driving

force behind everything we do. Ils what guides us to deliver our shategy, putting the customer/Citizen

firs! delivering relevant goods and setvices, and irnproving operational excellence. Below is an outline

of the organization's policies and activities that promote sustainability.

i) Sustainability shategy and profile

As a responsible corporate citizen, KEMSA recognizes the need to engage with its diverse public and

stakeholders through Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) to embrace corporate accountability and to

encourage a positive impact on the environment and stakeholders. This has cultivated good relations in

the environment we operate in.

KEMSA's core responsibility to its various stakeholders is to work closely with them to pursue the

enhancement and fulfillrnent of corporate values through sound business practices to promote a

sustainable society.

KEMSA developed a CSR Strategy aligned to the Authority's Strategic Plan 20-19-2024 which has

ilstitutionalized the practice of CSR by providing guidelines on partnership opportunities for CSR

prograrunes. This is in support of KEMSA's Strategic Objective No. 4; To develop and strengthen

strategic alliances and partnerships for improved health supply chain systems.

Corporate Social Responsibility Engagements

KEMSA appreciates the need to participate in CSR activities since it gives the Authority an opportunity

to give back to the society, country and environment. CSR goes beyond acts of charity and philanthropy

and it encompasses initiatives that enable the Authority to take responsibility for financial prudence,

42
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stakeholder welfare and environmental sustainability, a1l of which are central to the achievement of

KEMSA's mandate.

Benefits of Corporate Social Responsibility For KEMSA

o Visibility and improved reputation of the Authority

. Enhanced service delivery

. Make the world a better place

. Make KEMSA a public sector role model

o Building relationships with key stakeholders.

On 5th Jurre 2021, KEMSA in partnership with NEMA participated in the World Environment Day that

was held at Garissa University Grounds. The theme for the day was "Act now, Restore Nature and

Livelihood", which KEMSA echoed through a donation of Kshs. 200,000 / - that went towards tree

planting in Garissa County.

43

ii) Ilnvironmcntal I'erformance

KEMSA has devoted itself to not only protect but also add value to the environment for the benefit of

current and future generations. In fulfilling our CSR pronises, KEMSA has adopted a'Value to the Planet

Pillar' under which the following activity was undertaken;

a) World Enaironmental ilay participation
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KEMSA has over the years parturered with the Kenya Forest Service in the "Adopt-a-Forest" project

whereby the Authority planted about 3,000 indigenous tree seedlings and maintained three acres at

the semi-arid area of Kibiku forest.

However, due to the Covid-19 challenges the Authority went through during the last financial year,

KEMSA did not undertake any activities at the site in Kibiku Forest. We will however endeavor to

embark on this activity this financial year.

ii, Employee welfare

HEALTH & SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

KEMSA is comrnitted to using sound and responsible practices to safeguard the health, safety and welfare
of its employees, contractors, customers and any other person affected by its operations.
Occupational Health and Safety issues sha11 be addressed in systematic, proactive and explicit manner to
ensure that they are an integral part of day to day business of the organization.

To fulfil this commitment KEMSA undertakes to:

F Conform to the set company policies and comply with applicable national and international
regulations and code of practice governing occupational health and safety;

) Ensure the management properly supervises all processes and systems of work that are designed to
take account of health and safety and are held accountable for results on safety performance by setting
yearly key performance indicators;

44

.,



K€ITI.:I
aa,

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021 o

Over the years, the Authority has continuously retained a skilled team with depths of experience and

ability to execute on our core mandate and objectives. We continue to attract, develop and retain the

right talent while inculcating a performance-based culture.
Continuous improvement is the cornerstone of our high-performance culture, which drives us to learry

change and improve. During the year, we continued conducting wellness progrars covering staff, their
immediate families and the neighbouring communities.

The Authority values its human capital and focuses on providing an enabling environment and
maintaining a work force that is equipped with required knowledge, skills and competencies to enable

the Authority achieve its mandate and develop its workforce.

a) Genilet Analysis:

The Authority staf{ establishment is aligned with the organizational requirements. As at 30th June 2021, &re

Authority had a total workforce o{ 877 comprising various cadres distributed as detailed here-below:

45

F Support each employee with appropriate safety and health awareness training, supervision and other
resources as necessary to enable safe performance of work in accordance with company poliry;

F Facilitate the necessary forums where employees can raise issues of health and safety through the
established Health and Safety Comrnittees;

! Encourage consultation with and active participation of employees by continuously seeking to
improve the performance of health and safety systems in place;

) Ensure the provision and maintenance of adequate resources to take care of safety issues;
F Ensure that persons in workplace take responsibility for aspects of OH&S over which they have

control and provide a forum for continuous identification of workplace hazards;
) Protect the health and safety of identi{ied vulnerable employees including the disabled staff, pregnant

and nursing women, and ensure they perform work appropriate to their physical capacity and those
that pose no health hazards;

) Ensure visitols, contractors and customers abide by laid down safety health guidelines and
procedures on site;

F Consult with external experts and other interested parlies on OH&S issues; and
F Ensure the corporate health and safety management system is fu11y implemented within its business.

This will be done through total commitment and participation from all levels of employees.

The effective of OH&S management system sha1l be regularly reviewed in light of legislative and

organizational changes.



CenderCategory/Level Total No. of
staff per
category/evel Gender No.

Male 20Senior

Management (SA1-SA3)

27

female

Male 120Middle & Supervisory
(SA4-SA7)

252

Female 132

Male 107Operational staff &
Support (SA8-SA12)

598

Irenra Ic 1,91

Note.
ln additioO we also have the following officers as at the same period (30t1'June 2021).

1. Seconded staff from Ministry of Health (SC) - 5

2. Attached Staff from Security of Government Building (Admin Police) - 13

3- Short Term Contract Staff (STC) - 36

TOTAI,. 54

b) Capacity Buikling

In order to equip our people with the relevant skills and competencies, the Authority implemented its Annual
Training Plan during the FY. The approach adopted including offering employees training programs that
will heip them upskill their professionalism and enhance their performance. Out of a total target of 240

programs, we were able to execute 68, the programs were greatly affected by the Covid-19 pandemic during
the year under review. Number of programs during the year as summarized in table below;

sAo. Category of training No. of staff trained

I Cross-departmental 4

2. Performance Contract 13

3 26

1 Other programs 46
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TO'IAL 877 877

Professional programs



c) Youth Attachments €t lnternships

KEMSA continues to offer several University and middle level college students work integrated learning
specilic to their areas of interest in all the sections and departments. Under this program, the interns are

based at a specific business unit for a period of 3-6 months in order to learn on the job and get the

appropriate mentorship in the specific areas. This program enhances the Government's agenda on
development and growth for the youth, the Authority implemented an attachment and internship
program as follows:

a) Attachments - for ongoing/continuing students

b) Internships - as a post qualification for graduates from various

Universities, Colleges & tertiary institutions.

The Internship program was done in liaison with the Public Service Commission (I'SC) while attachment was

coordinated together with the National Industriai Training Authority (NITA). Details for the attaches and
interns are as per graph below:

Youths on attachment/Internship- Gender.

As at the end of the year, KEMSA had engaged 36 Attaches, and 8 interns in total. Attaches represented

81.8% while interns represented 18.18% of student intake in the year as illustrated in the chart below:

K€lTLSl Students on Attachment by Gender

ln the year, o{ the 36 students on Attachment, 20 were female representing 56%
16 were Male representing 44%

.J
www.kemsa.co.ke
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Kem=t Interns by Gender
a,

Male 5

Female 3

Im.F'Y m20/21 of the eight interns in the organization, three were female and five
were male.

d) Performance Appraisal:

The Authority implemented its performance management and review program that entailed review of
performance for employees based on a bi-annual and an annual appraisal framework. The framework
incorporates setting targets, reviewing and evaluating the same - based on the Strategic Plan, Performance

Contracting and other operational requirements.

e) Employee Welfare anil Wellness

The Authority continued offering staff medical insurance cover to employees and their families. The medical
insurance package consists of in-patient; outpatient, maternity dental and optical cover. This is meant to

enhance employee health and wellness, which in furn boosts employee morale, hence increased productivity.

Other wellness programs included sensitization of the employees and external community on HIV/AIDS
awareness. This is as detailed in the table below;

www.kemsa.co.ke
o
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S/No. Activities No. per category

1 No. of employees sensitized on HIV/AIDS 2

No. of external comrnunity members reached out
by KEMSA on HIV/AIDS awareness

NII,

No. of staff who attended rehabilitation program

Covid-19 measures:

In a bid to prevent the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Authority initiated the following activities

a) Testing of staff for Covid-19
b) Vaccination of stalf against Covid-19
c) Provision of face masks to staff
d) Provision of sanitizers
e) Ensuring that there is adequate water and soap for washing hands
f) DisirLfecting of work places.

fl Diaercity and lnclusiuity

The Authority ascdbes to the Government requirements on diversity and inclusivity in all its programs and
activities. The Authodty has set up the following Committees to address issues of diversity and inclusivity:

a) GenderMainstreamingComrnittee.
b) National Cohesion and Values Comrnittee.
c) DisabilityMainstreamingComrnittee.

The following graph illustrates the gender composition affirming the Authority's comrnitment in observing
a third gender rule.
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630/o

K€ITI.$I KEMSA TOTAL STAFF
DISTRIBUTION

I male

lnw 20/20/n, Male staff represented 53% of total staff in KEMSA while
female staff represented 37%

g) Ethics and Integrity:

The Authority is committed to enhancing ethics and integrity in its operations. This enhances the protection
of KEMSA's assets and prevents fraud. The following initiatives have been put in place:

a) Appointment of Integrity Assurance Officers
b) Training and sensitization of employees on integrity
c) Filling and submission of Wealth Declaration Forms for new/exiting employees and once every

two years by all employees.

h) Employee Relations

The Authority ensured that cordial employee relations were maintained during the year under review. The

following initiatives were implemented to enhance employee relations:

a) Resolution of employee grievances as received.

b) Appointment and operationalization of a Disciplinary Committee

ir) Market place practices

a) Responsible competition practice

KEMSA believes in fair competition in procurement and tendering. Procurement at KEMSA is conducted
strictly in adherence to the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2015. KEMSA has aligned to the

Treasury's Integrated Financial Management Information System (IFMIS) portal further enhancing

www.kemsa.co.ke I
o
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procurement in an open and transparent manner that encourages open competition and open to public
examination and review. This process enables KEMSA to obtain high quality goods and services at
reasonable cost.

b) Responsible marketing anil adaertisement

As part of the marketing and advertising of KEMSA's Health Products and Technologies, we always give
profound consideration to the intended recipients and those exposed to the messages and ensure that our
marketing communications do not include harm-fuI, i11ega1, immoral, irresponsible or misleading content.
We ensure that the content communicated to consumers are appropriate and carry with them all the
sensitivity required. We endeavor to maintain ethical marketing practices by focusing on provision of
products that are responsive to customer needs. We build and maintain customer relationships with
honesty, integrity and loyalty whde abiding by the law.

c) Proiluct steutailship

Product stewardship for KEMSA means that our products satisfy the highest quality standards and are

safe for the consumers. KEMSA endzaaors to nnintain product steunrdship through rigorous screening of our
supplier stakeholders zohile targeting on minimizing the health, salety, enaironmental, and social impacts of
the products and promotion of our customer's rights to basic needs, safety, informatior; representatiory
consumer education and a healthy envtonment. All products undergo extensive quality assurance along
the entire value chain including post distribution surveillance in the interest of product safety. We strictly
adhere to local and international standards, product specifications and legal requirements.

51

o

KEMSA has continuously done market assessment on pricing to ensure that prices of essential

comrnodities remain considerably low. We have also been increasing our product range with an aim of
availing more comrnodities for specialized categories e.g. Oncology, Urology, Laboratory, Theatre and
Orthopedics. KEMSA greatly values her customers by providing quality and affordable health products
and technologies geared towards sustainability of a long and mutually beneficial relationship. We focus
on low cost and best value of the products and services we provide to our customers.

KEMSA is free from political interference as it is governed by an Act of parliament and other relevant
legislation. Governance at KEMSA is overseen by an independent Board of Directors.

At KEMSA we recognize that adherence to the principles of competition while dealing with our
customers is essential to the maintenance of the integrity of the Authority. KEMSA seeks to achieve
responsible commercial success and compete on a level playing ground, we are comrnitted to promoting
fair competition and healthy markeiplaces. We operate in compliance with the applicable competition
laws in the country. KEMSA prides itself as a market leader and being a government agency is cornmitted
to making health products and technologies affordable by offering the best prices in the market whilst
enhancing customer experience.
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We are comrnitted to strict adherence to our systems and procedures as explicated in our Quality
Management System.

The KEMSA Laboratory is now highly regarded both nationally and intemationally for its technical
competence to test quality of medical products before they are released to the public. KEMSA also works
with National Quality Control Laboratory, Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS) arid other regulatory
bodies to ensure patients safety. More importantly, KEMSA ensures that only those products that are

authorized to be in the market by Pharmacy and Poisons Board are procured.

Recently the Authority expanded its laboratory to ensure that latest equipment is in place to assure

quality of commodities before distribution to various health facilities.

Good business practices with suppliers

KEMSA has put in place long term framework contracts currently tlvo years for suppiy of Health
Products and Technologies (Health Products and Technologies). Managing of relationship with suppliers
is key in ensuring that contract terms are met by both parties.

S upp lier P erf o rmance Me dsur em ent

KEMSA has put in place a supplier performance measurement tool that helps track performance
of each supplier against outlined key performance indicators (KPIs). The KPIs aim at measuring
delivery timeliness, quantity, quality and cost. Suppliers who perform well are eligible to be

awarded future contracts at KEMSA. Punitive measure also applies to suppliers whose
performance is below the required threshold. Such measures include and not limited to Conhact
termination, Liquidation of Performance Security and debarment in line with the procurement
law.

Supplier Conferences and Regular Meetings

KEMSA has adopted the practice of holding supplier conJerences at least twice a year. During these

conferences, all suppliers who have running contracts with KEMSA are invited for an open discussiory
highlight supply challenges and discuss ways to improve supplier performance. Furthermore, regular
meetings are held with suppliers experiencing supply challenges and a way forward is agreed upon.

Continuous two-way Communication u.tith srppliers (proaiiling immediate feeilback)

KEMSA has a dedicated contract management unit whose main mandate is to continuously track
performance of each supplier against the contractual terms. Continuous communication through letters,
e-mails and even telephone conversation provide a platform where there is continuous update and
feedback from the supplier on the status of their contract.
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Timelq Issuance of Releoant Documents

Timely and effective internal processing of relevant documents such as purchase orders, inspection and
acceptance letters and contracts agreements have a signi{icant impact on supplier performance. This
facilitates delivery of products, timely bank financing where necessary.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility/Community Engagements

Commodi Mana ment

KEMSA is a medical supermarket that procures, warehouses and distributes Health Products and

Technologies to all public facilities countywide. In order to ensure that the health commodities are in

good condition, good warehousing practices should be maintained not only in KEMSA but in all health

facilities. It is in this regard and in light of KEMSA Strategic objective no. W; which stipulates our role to

support county governrnents to establish and maintain appropriate supply chain systems {or drugs and

medicai supplies, that KEMSA identi{ied tl'rree best performing counties namely Kwale, Nakuru and

Ki1ili.

i) Msambzoeni County Referral Hospital

The facility identified drug store shelving as their most pressing need. KEMSA distributes medicai

commodities to this facility but it lacked a shelved drug store. The comrnodities would be received

at the facility and placed on the floor on pallets. The Authority committed to ensuring shelving

was done at the drug store at a cost of Kshs 497,000/- to boost commociity management at the

facility drug store. This is a great milestone to the facility, which has a catchrnent popuiation of

about 23,307 people. It brings along sanity and orderliness to inventory management and proper

comrnodity storage. Phase 2 of the project will include temperature control measures, painting

and co-branding.

53

o

The Authority embarked on a structured CSR journey with these counties to ensure they maintained

high standards in comrnodity management. This will ensure quality, effectiveness and safety of the

drugs. KEMSA, in [aison with the three counties identified respective areas that needed support as

follows;
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Before Photos

After l'hotos

ii) Mtwapa Health Centre

The facility has a catchment population of about 63,000 people that are direct beneliciaries. Plans

are underway to upgrade it Irom a Health Centre to a Sub County hospital. The Health Centre

had a dilapidated and incomplete drug store that needed flooring (tiles), wall plastering and

ceiling. KEMSA donated Kshs 499,500/- which facilitated these requirements; tiling of the floor,

ceiling placement, and wall plastering.

In order to continue in maintaining good warehousing practices at the facility, the Authority will

undertake the following activities under Phase II of the projec!

. Racking

. Temperature control

. Painting and co-branding.
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Before photos

After Photos

iii) Nyonjoro Health Centre - Nakuru

The facility requested for support in equipping their newly established laboratory. The facility

serves a population of around 10,000 people and lack of a functional laboratory in the area aJfects

service delivery to this populace. Equipping the laboratory will aid in diagnosing and testing

diseases of the patients visiting the faciiity. In view of this, KEMSA donated Kshs 500,000/- that

went towards the purchase of the following items;

. 1 Olympus binocular microscope

o 2 Laboratory stools

o 1 Laboratory table

o 1 laboratory metallic cabinet
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10. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit this report together with the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021,

which show the state of affairs of Kenya Medical Supplies Authority.

i) PrincipalActivities

Tl-rc authority's principal activities are;

a) To procure, warehouse and distribute drugs and medical supplies for the prescribed public health

programs, the national shategic reserve stock reserve, prescribed essential health packages and

national referral hospitals.

b) To establish a network of storage, packaging and distribution facilities for the provision of drugs

and medical supplies to health institutions.

c) To enter into partnership with or establish frameworks with county Governments for purposes of

providing services in procurement, warehousing, distribution of drugs and medical supplies.

d) Collect information and provide regular reports to the national and county governments on the

status and cost effectiveness of procuremen! the distribution and value of prescribed essential

medical supplies delivered to health facilities, Stock status and on any other aspect of supply

system and performance that may be required by stakeholders.

e) Support county governments to establish and maintain appropriate supply chain systems for

drugs and medical supplies.

ii) Results

KEMSA's results for the year ended 30th June 2021 are set out on pages 61-109.

iii) Directors

The names of the directors who held office during the year to the date of this report are set out on page

8-10.
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i") Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authorities in

accordance with Article 229 ol the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 to carry out the

audit for the year ended June 30,2021in accordance to section 23 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which

empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Fred Wanyonyi

Corporation Secretary

Nairobi

it) (o^r,r; cs,?e
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77. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Pubiic Finance Management Act, 2012 and Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Act of 25t]'

January 2013 section 17 requires the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of the Kenya

Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA), which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Authority at the end of the financial year and the operating results for that year. The Directors are also

required to ensure that KEMSA keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy

of its financial position. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of KEMSA's financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year ended 30th June, 2021. This

responsibility includes:

The Directors accept responsibility for the KEMSA's financial statements, which have been ptepared using

appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in

conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (I|€AS), and in the manner required by

the Public Finance Management Act and the State Corporations AcL The Directors are of the opinion that

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of KEMSA'S transactions during the financial

year ended 30th lune 2021, and of the financial position as at that date.
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(i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue

to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the entity;

(iii) designing, irnplementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

misstatements, whether due to error or fraud;

(i") s#eguarding the assets of KEMSA;

(") selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

("i) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained by KEN{SA which

have been relied upon in the preparation of the financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems

oI internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that KEMSA will not remain a going concern

for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The entity's financial statements were approved by the Board on

behalf by:

2021 and signed on its

Signature Signature... ,....

Mary Chao Mwadime
BOARD CHAIRPERSON
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Terry Kiunge Ramadhani
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA MEDICAL SUPPLIES
AUTHORITY (KEMSA) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable Unancial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, lhe
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and lhe Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the repod, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Medical Supplies
Authority (KEMSA) sel out on pages 61 to 119, which comprise of the statement of
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financial position as at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounls for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) as at 30June,2O21,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply
with the Kenya lvledical Supplies Authority Act, 2013 and the Public Finance Management
Act 2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

'1, Unauthorised Expenditure

'1.1 Over Expenditure on Plant and Machinery

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and machinery of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 (2020 - Kshs.6,341 ,530,305) which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to
the financial statements, includes an addition to plant and machinery amounting to
Kshs.37,668,129 comprising forklifts and reach tracks whose budget was
Kshs.33,200,000 leading to an unapproved over expenditure of Kshs.4,468,129.

1.2 Over Expenditure on Employee Costs

Similarly, the statement of financial performance reflects employee cost balance of
Kshs.1 ,264,329,720 while the approved budget indicates a balance Kshs.1,199,280,OOO
resulting to unexplained over expenditure of Kshs.65,049,720.

ln the circumstances, the regularity an the expenditure amounting to Kshs.69,517,849
could not be confirmed for the year ended 30 June, 2021.

2. lnaccuracy in the Financial Statements

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 (2020 - Kshs.6,341,530,305), which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to
the financial statements, includes a provision on scrapping for unverified fixed assets
balance of Kshs.236,678,1 1 1 on various PPE items and an accumulated depreciation of
Kshs.72,937,592. This resulted into net prioryear adjustment of Kshs.163,740,520 which
is reflected in the statement of changes in nel assets contrary to Paragraph 48 of the
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) 3 which states that a prior
period error shall be corrected by retrospective restatement except to the extent that it is
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a impracticable to determine either the period specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of statement of changes in net
assets for the year ended 30 June, 2021 could not be confirmed.

3. lrregular Procurement of Assets

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 (2020 - Kshs.6,341,530,305) as disclosed in Note 33(a) to the
financial statements. The Authority advertised for supply of four (4) forklift and four (4)
reach trucks and five (5) firms responded using different currencies, one quoted with Euro
(€), three in USA Dollar (USD) and one in Kenya shillings (KES). The wining company
had quoted two (2) forklifts at EUR 74,000 and four (4) Reach Trucks at EUR 169,800 all
amounting to EUR 243,800. There was no evidence of uniformity in evaluating using
same currency by converting prevailing market rates for all bids quoted to one currency.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and propriety in the expenditure on the procurement
of the plant and equipment could not be confirmed.

4. Unsupported Contracts - Warehouse Works

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and machinery of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to the financial statements,
includes an amount of Kshs.960,283,859 in respect of addition to plant and machinery.
Review of the balances revealed that an amount of Kshs.4,740,000 paid to a contractor
for assembling and fixing of storage racks. The Authority awarded tender to assemble
and fix metal storage racks in Kisumu and Mombasa warehouses on 07 July, 2020 at a
cost of Kshs.4,740,000 with a duration of one month ending 10 August, 2020. Physical
verification in February, 2022 revealed that some metal bars were delivered to Kisumu
warehouse but were not assembled while none were delivered to Mombasa warehouse.
ln addition, the designs, Bills of Quantities and Technical Supervision Reports were not
provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and propriety in the expenditure on the procurement
of the plant and equipment could not be confirmed.

5. Unsupported Distribution Costs

The statement of financial performance reflects distribution costs amounting to
Kshs.859,488,800 which, as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, includes an
amount of Kshs.729,351 ,595 paid to outsourced distributors for delivery of medical
commodities to various counties. However, the corresponding signed delivery notes were
not provided for audit review.

Further, the balance includes an amount of Kshs.33,075,000 paid to outsourced
distribution costs of assorted personal protective equipment, PPE kit dispatched to
Nyanza Province (PGH) - Jaramogi Oginga Odinga Teaching and Referral Hospital
(JOOTRH). However, physical verification carried out at the Hospitals revealed that there

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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was no entry of this consignment in the respective store records while the copy of the
delivery notes provided did not indicate the date of receiving the items.

ln addition, and as previously reported, the Authority entered into a contract agreement
with a Courier Services Company on 24 September, 2016 for provision of Courier
Services to health facilities countrywide. However, from April, 2019 to September, 2019,
the firm was overpaid by Kshs.19,352,250. The amount had not been recovered as
30 June, 2021 and no explanation was provided for the anomaly.

Consequently, the propriety and accuracy of distribution costs of Kshs.762,426,595 could
not be confirmed.

6. Long Outstanding Balances

6.1. Account Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.5,863,800,694 (2020 - Kshs.6,605,189,547) which, as disclosed in Note
21 to the financial statements, includes long outstanding receivables balance of
Kshs.4,362,709,769 owed by various agencies which has been outstanding for more than
ninety (90) days.

6.2. Account Payables

Further, the statement reflects trade and other payables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.7,015,398,881 which, as drsclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements,
includes operations creditors' balance of Kshs.180,784,'1 94 out of which an amount of
Kshs.36,370,448 has been long outstanding since year 2012.|n addition, trade creditors
- medical balance of Kshs.2,786,573,806 includes an amount of Kshs.250,044,34'1 which
has been outstanding for over one year while the supplier funds retained balance of
Kshs.21,639,338 includes an amount of Kshs.10,977,838 dating back 01 Ju|y,2012.

Consequently, the recoverability of the account receivables and the validity of the trade
payables balances as at 30 June,2021 could not be confirmed.

7. Unsupported Expired lnventories

As disclosed under Note 23 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects inventory balance of Kshs.'17,558,529,935. The balance constitutes expired
stocks worth Kshs.328,237,158 out of which an amount of Kshs.191 ,870,834 was
financed by KEMSA Capital Fund while the balance of Kshs.136,366,324 by third parties.
The expired stocks were not disclosed in the annual reports and financial statements of
the expired stocks, Management did not indicate the reasons for expiry of stock worth
Kshs.1 14,389,834.

Further, the expired stock balance constitutes COVID-19 stock worth Kshs.124,513,400.
However, the supporting schedule provided for audit lacked crucial details such as the
receiving dates, their location, date of the manufacture, unit of the manufacture, batch
number, pallet number, shelf life and the reasons for expiry.
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a ln absence of any justification and disclosure of expired stocks, the accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June,2021 could not be
confirmed.

L Unsupported Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions amounting to Kshs.7,015,398,881 which, as disclosed in Note 25 to the
financial statements, includes trade creditors totalling to Kshs.2,588,017,506 that lacked
invoices, goods received notes and respective stock cards.

Consequently, the accuracy, validity and completeness of trade and other payables from
exchange transactions of Kshs.2,588,017,506 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA)
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no other key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year and in the Special Audit Report on KEMSA, several
issues were raised. However, the Management has not resolved the issues or given
satisfactory explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board templates and The National Treasury and Planning Circular
Ref AG.411612 Vol.3(72) dated 30 June,2021 .

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of
Public Resources sections of my report, based on the audit procedures performed, I

confirm that public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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Basis for Conclusion

1. Unexplained Loss of Revenue

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects a balance of Kshs.1 ,317,2 54,777 in respect of net sales arrived at after deducting
the total cost of sale balance of Kshs.6,905,579,004 from the total sales balance of
Kshs.8,222,833,780. Analytical review performed revealed that sales revenue from
pharmaceutical products amounted to Kshs.2,070,014,129 (2020 - Kshs.4,066,305,161)
while the corresponding cost of input on the pharmaceutical products was
Kshs.1 ,853,91 9,861 . However, a comparison of cost versus revenue revealed various
pharmaceuticals inputs procured at Kshs.14,133,303 were sold at Kshs.12,329,965
resulting to unexplained loss of Kshs.1 ,803,338.

ln the circumstances, it has not been established whether value for money was achieved

2. Non-Compliance with the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects cost of sales amounting to Kshs.6,905,579,004 which includes cost of sales on
Non- Pharmaceuticals amounting to Kshs.1 ,770,542,066 and Pharmaceuticals inputs
amounting to Kshs.1 ,853,919,861 . Analytical review performed revealed the following
unsatisfactory matters:

i) The cost of sales on non- pharmaceuticals and Pharmaceuticals inputs amounting to
Kshs.536,752,879 and Kshs.95,439,349 respectively, were procured through direct
procurement method contrary to Section 103 (2) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which requires that the method is applied in circumstances where
goods, works or services are available only from a particular supplier or contractor and
due to the urgency of supplies.

ii) Further, non- pharmaceuticals and Pharmaceuticals inputs worth Kshs.368,536,692
and Kshs.178,440,091 respectively, were delivered after the due dates. The delays
ranged between fifteen (15) days to six hundred and eighteen (618) days.

iii) Further, the cost of sales on pharmaceutical inputs constitutes COVID-19 items which
were acquired through direct procurement method without any justification contrary to
Section aB (a) (c) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015. Three
suppliers who won bids worth Kshs.258,974,400 through direct procurement were not
in the prequalified list of suppliers. There was no evidence that any market survey was
carried out and no reports on the direct procurements of values exceeding five
hundred thousand shillings (Kshs.500,000) was made to the Public Procurement
Regulatory Authority as required by the law.

iv) The cost of sales on non-pharmaceutical inputs includes procurement valued at
Kshs.21 1,019,769 which relates to addendum contracts that were varied and signed
before the lapse of twelve (12) months contract period. This is contrary to Section 1 39
(b) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which provides that no

Repo of the Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2021

6

o



o
contract price shall be varied upwards within twelve months from the date of the
signing of the contracts.

v) The cost of sales on Non-Pharmaceutical inputs balance includes purchase of
dispensing envelopes (khaki) worth Kshs.10,534,000. However, two Members in the
Opening Committee did not have letters appointing them to the Committee. This is
contrary to Section 78(1) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015
which provides that; An Accounting Officer of a procuring entity shall appoint a Tender
Opening Committee specifically for the procurement.

vi) The cost of sales further constitutes purchases of pharmaceutical and non -
pharmaceuticals goods from fourteen (14) suppliers worth Kshs.1 ,062,371 ,472. The
purchases were based on expired contracts based on a memo dated 14 August, 2020
which extended the contracts to facilitate additional call down. However, the
extensions were not based on the recommendation of an Evaluation Committee. This
is contrary to Section 139(2) of Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015
which states that an Accounting Officer of a procuring entity, on the recommendation
of an Evaluation Committee, may approve the request which request shall be
accompanied by a certificate from the tenderer making a justification for such cost-
(a) extension of contract period.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. lrregular Extension of Contracts

3.1. Extension of Distribution Contracts

As disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects distribution costs balance of Kshs.859,488,800. lncluded in this amount is
Kshs.738,510,884 paid to suppliers under outsourced diskibution costs. However, the
expenditure was based on double extension of contracts for more than thirty (30) days.

3.2. Extension of lnsurance Covers

Further, the statement of financial performance reflects insurance expenses of
Kshs.159,102,627 which, as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements, includes
insurance costs balance of Kshs.'15,795,502 out of which Kshs.4,261,566 relates to
extension of insurance covers. The contracts were extended for more than thirty (30) days
without review of the contract implementation and approval by the Board of Directors.

This is contrary to Section 88 (3) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015
which provides that an extension under subsection (1) shall be restricted to not more than
thirty days (30) and may only be done once.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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4. lrregular Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and machinery of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to the financial statements,
includes an amount of Kshs.960,283,859 in respect of addition to plant and machinery.
Review of the balances revealed that the balance includes procurement of laboratory
equipment valued at Kshs.5,438,354 for items procured using restricted tender. Fifteen
(15) firms had submitted bids but only three (3) were evaluated as responsive out of which
the highest bidder was awarded. However, the lowest bidder was disqualified based on
conditions which had not been included in the initial bid documents. This is contrary to
Regulation 184 of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 20'15 requires
that a procuring entity shall use standard asset disposal documents.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

5. Staff on Secondment

The statement of financial performance reflects employee cost of Kshs.1,264,329,720
which, as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements, includes payment of salaries
amounting to Kshs.B,682,676 to five (5) staffs who were on secondment and had served
for more than six (6) years in the capacity without explanations for continued contract
extensions. This is contrary to Part 8.33(1) of the Public Service Commission (PSC)
Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual, May, 20'16 which provides that
secondment of officers from the public service to other organizations is applicable to
pensionable officers, for a period not exceeding three (3) years and may be renewable
once.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls,
Risk Management and Governance sections of my report, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk management and governance were not
effective.

Report of the Auditor-Aeneral on Kenya Medical Supplies Aulhority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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o Basis for Gonclusion

As disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the statement of financial
performance reflects staff travel expenses of Kshs.124,01 4,172. Examination of sampled
payment vouchers revealed issuance of imprest before previous ones are surrendered or
recovered in full from the salary. Further, the schedules presented for audit to support
hire of taxi, staff travel lacked key details such as nature of the activities, location, purpose
and number of days.

Consequently, the existence of an effective internal control system could not be confirmed

2. Realized Exchange Loss

The statement of financial performance reflects other operatlng expenses of
Kshs.398,193,149 which, asdisclosed under Note 19 to the financial statements, includes
bank charges and commission realized forex exchange loss of Kshs.174,723,450 which
exposed the Authority to financial loss and no mitigating measures have been put in place.

ln the circumstances, the management of fiscal responsibilities and controls of projecting,
analyzing and hedging forex exchange losses are weak.

3. Weak Governance of the Authority

The financial statements under fiduciary management indicates that key departments are
headed by officers in acting capacity for more than six (6) months who have been paid
cumulative salary of Kshs.29,703,231 . This contrary to Section C.14 (1) of the Human
Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for the Public Service 20'16 states that "when
an officer is eligible for appointment to a higher post and is called upon to act in that post
pending advertisement of the post, he is eligible for payment of acting allowance at the
rate of twenty percent (20o/o) of his substantive basic salary and the acting allowance will
not be payable to an officer for more than six (6) months.

Under circumstances, firm and effective decision-making mechanism could not be
established.

4. Unapproved Staffing

As disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects employee cost of Kshs.1,264,329,720. The Authority has an approved staff
establishment of three hundred and forty-one (341) staff . However, the staff register
indicates that a total of nine hundred and eleven (91 1) employees in place resulting to
unapproved staffing of five hundred and seventy (570).

Under the circumstances, it is not clear how the Authority identified the staffing needs
thereby employing five hundred and seventy (570) extra members of staff which poses a
risk of bloated staffing, duplication of duties which constrains Authority's finances.

Report o/the Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standard
requires that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

lvlanagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as lvlanagement determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to dissolve the Authority or to cease operations..

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for lhe preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Repo of the Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Autharity (KEMSA) Ior the year ended 30 Juhe, 202 1
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The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Authority financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how lvlanagement monitors compliance wilh
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.



a reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

compliance with the authorities that govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a materiai uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditols report to the related disclosures in the

Repo4 of the Audito*Genetdl on Kenya Medi.al Supplies Authority (KEMSA) fot the year ended 30 Juke, 2021
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
sustain its services.

a
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

19 July,2022
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I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.
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13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note

Financial year

FY 2020-2021.

Kshs

Financial year

2079-2020

Kshs

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Grants from National Government

Public contributions and donations

Revenue from exchange transactions

Net Sales

Rendering of Services

Rental Revenue

Finance Income

Other Income

Total revenue
Expenses

Employee costs

DishibuUon Costs

Insurance costs

Rental expenses

kgal expenses

Ut ities expenses

Staff travel expenses

Finance costs

Audit fees

BOD expenses'

Depreciation & amortiza tion

Other Operatin g Expenses

Total expenses

Other gains/(losses)

Surplus before tax
Taxation

Surplus for the period

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

o

10

11

1.2

13
-1,4

15

L6

77

18
^t9

125,000,000

6,383,639

1sL,383,639

'L 
,3^t7 ,254 ,777

't,543,484,208

1_^t,205,348

6-16 ,085 ,847
64,299,L18

3,552,329,297

3,683,7'1 2,936

't ,264,329,720
859,488,800

L59,L02,627

2L7,1-75,902

99,993,837

L8,933,084

L21,014,"l72
-r,768,676

3,500,000

1.7 ,68L,305
1'r7 ,830,"125

398 ,"t93 ,149

3,282,071,,396

401,70L,540

401,701540

653,239,996

8,044,545

661-,?84,541,

'1,083,420,635

772,369,557

92,4L7 ,L74

187,48"t,365
-139,772,928

20,967,539
't54,944,559

2,789,997

3,500,000
"t0,954,944

-t6'1,'179 ,098
411.,440,778

3,O34,638,576

I ,663 ,393 ,620

L,663,393,620

51

-t,8'18,997,228

't,624,8?2,909

^t4,569,878

489 ,36^1,4L3

88,996,228

4,036,747,655

4,598,032,196
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Note
Financial Year

2020/2021.
Kshs

Financial Year
201.9/2020

Kshs
Assets
Curent assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transacdons
Inventories
Total current assets

Non-current assetg
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets

Long Term Deposit
Total non-current assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange
Trade and other payables from non exchange
Pa),rnent Received in Advance
Current Provisions
Project Fund
Medical Commodity Fund
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilitie s

Deferred income
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

KEMSA Capital
Accumulated Funds
Revenue reserves
Revaluation reserve

Total net assets and liabilities

33 (a)
33 (b)

24

20
2-l

22
23

25
26
27
28
29
30

31

32

8,1'13,988,990
5,863,800,694

4,430,11.4
1.7,558,529,935
3'L,540,749,734

7 ,.1 67,704,659
3,557,706

53,815,430
7,225,077,795

48,51.5,430
6,390,045,735

1.0,453,522,589
6,605,-189,547

528,37"t,687
17,738,279,406
3s,325,363,229

6,341.,530,305

38,765,827,529 4r,715,408,964

7,0-1.5,398,88-t

2,76-1.,333

3,025,877,678t

- 1.67,673,093

45,723,83-t
9,356,lt0,719

79,673,544,935

798,"t74,974
798,L74,974

6,879,649,362

7,594,224,973
LL7,96-1,863

29,065,065

8,920,21.4,768
23,541.,11.6,037

58,-146,334
58,L46,334

20 ,41L,7L9 ,9L0 23,599,262,366
78,354,107,679

8,461,576,303
256,950,298

8,85-1.,950,562

783,630,456

't 8,1t6,1.46,599
8,461.,576,303'

256,950,298
8,613,989,542

783,630,456
38,765,827,529 41,715,408,965
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15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Attributable to the owners of the controlling entity

Reserves

KEMSA Capital Accumulated 
Revenue Reserve' Funds

Kshs Kshs Kshs

Total

Kshs

Balance as at 1st ]uly 2017

Revaluation Surplus

Surplus for the period

Balance as at 30th June 2018

Revaluation Surplus

Surplus for the period

Balance as at 30th June 2019

Surplus for the period

Balance as at 30th June 2020

Prior Year Adjustment

Surplus for the period

Balance as at 30TH JUNE 2021

8,46t,576,303 256,950,298 4,962,592,613 783,630,456 1.4,464,749,670

8,467,576,303 256,950,298

837,296,594

5,799,889,207 783,530,456 75,302,046,264

8,46r,576,303 256,950,298

1,150,706,715

6,950,595,922

1.,663,393,620

8,613,989,542

(1.63,740,5201

401.,701,540

8,857,950,562

783,630,456 16,452,752,979

8,461,s76,303 256,950,298

8,461.,576,303 256,950,298 783,630,456 18,354,107,51.9

55
D

Revaluation
Reserve

Kshs

783,630,456 18,116,146,599
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76. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30IUNE

2021

Financial Year

Note ba 2o2o/2o27 w 2ot_9/202o

Kshs Kshs
Cash flows frorn operating a(tivities
Receipts
Grants frorn National Govemment I 125.000,000 653,2i9,996
Public contributions and donatiorB 2 6,383,639 8,O44,545
Net Sales 3 L ,3-17 ,254,777 L418,997,224
Rendering of Services 1 7 ,543 ,484,208 1,624,822,909
Rental Revenue 5 11,205,348 14,569,474
Finance lncome 616,O85,447 489,36L,413
Other lncome 64,299,118 118,996,224
Total Receipts 3,683,712,936 4,698,032,1_96

Payments
Employee costs 8 1,264,329,720 7 ,O83,420,635
Distribution Costs 9 859,4tt8,800 772,369,557
Insurance costs l(l 159,102,627 92,477,774
Rental expenses 277,775,902 181,481,365
Legal experrses 72 99,993,837 139,772,928
Utilities expenses '13 18,933,084 20,967,539
Staff travel expenses 1_24,014,'172 154,944,559
Finance costs .15

7,768,676 2,189,997
Audit fees 3,500,000 3,s00,000
BOD experlses 77,68L,305 10,954,944
Depreciation & amortization l8 7-r7,830,'t25 L61,179,O98
Other Operating Expenses t9 394,'193 ,'149 477,440,778
Total Expenses 3,242,01'1,396 3,O34,63a,576

Net Surplus 401,701,540 7,663,393,620
Decrease/ Qncrease) in Current Assets 7 ,445,079 ,896 (8,234,224,923\
Increase/ @ecrease) in Current Liabilities (3,927 ,57 | ,096\ 71,942,9tj6,788
Increase/ (Decrease) in Deferred Income 740,O24.64tJ (8,044,545)
Asset Disposal(NBV) 943,875
Depreciation & amortization Itt 117,830,125 L61,179,@a
In cash support on Expencliture
Net cash flows from operating activities (7,222,93O,896) 5,526,753,974
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant equipment and intangible assets (964,164,992\ (13&,O33,7't2\

Proceeds Frcnr Disposal Of Fixed Assets
lncrease/decrease in non curent receivable (s,300,000) (11,210,844)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (969,464,992) (t ,377 ,244,5561
Cash FIows from Financing activities
KEMSA Capital
Revaluation Surplus
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,339,s33,600) 4,148,909 35a
Cash and cash ccluival('nls at t ]ul\' 2020 70,453,522,590 6,3M,673,237
Cash and cash equivalents at.30 Iunc 2021 20 8,113,988,990 10,453,522,590
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Original Budget Adjustments Final Budget
Actual on

Comparable
Basis

Performance
Difference ol, of Utilization

2020p.021 2020/2021 2020/2021 2020/202L 2020/2021.

INCOME Ksh.000's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's

Grants from National C,overnment 250,000 (12s,000) 125,000 125,000 100.00%

Public con tribu tions and dona tions 6,384 6,384

Net Sales L,229,36"r
I,

1,229 ,361 7,317,255 87 ,894
-107 .15%

Other lncome 2,204,753 2,204,"t53 ) )aq r)'74 10 qrl L0L.40%

TOTAL INCOME 3,683,5-14 (x2s,000) 3,558,514 3,683,7-t 3 -125,L99

17. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30TH JUNE 2021
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Original Budget Adiustments Final Budget
Actual on

Comparable
Basis

Performance
Difference "h of Utilization

2020/202-l 2020/202L 2020/202^l 2020/202'l 2020/2021_

Pa).ments Ksh.000's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's

Staff Costs 65,948 "t,265,228 -1,264,330 899 99.93%

Distribution Costs 966,"198 (106,664) 859,534 859,,189 45 99.997"

141,500 17,849 1,59,349 159,103 217 99.85%

Rental expenses 148,966 68,245 217,z-t"l 277,"176 35 99.98%

l,egal expenses 100.000 140 100,140 99,994 1,46 99.85%

9,282 9,7"t5 78,997 18,933 64 99.66%

Staff travel expenses 1,24,742 (6s0) 124,092 "t24,0"14 78 99.94%

Finance costs 2,970 (842) 2,128 1,769 360 83.10%

Audit fees 6,466 (2,941) 3,525 3,500 25 99.29v"

BOD expenses 14,420 4,473 18,893 77 ,681 "t,272 93.597"

Depreciation & amortization 147,960 (29,810) 118,150 "t"17 ,830 320 99.73%

Other Operating Expenses 423,898 (25,464) 398,434 398,1,93 99.947"

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,285,683 (0) 3,285,683 3,282,01L 3,67't

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD 397,831 40-t,702 12L,528

a

Ksh.000's

7,"t99,280

Insurance cosb

Ut ities expenses

272,831
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18. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
KEMSA is established by and derives its authority and accountability from KEMSA Act of 2013.

KEMSA is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is dorniciled in Kenya. KEMSA's
principai activity is Procurement, Warehousing and Distribution of Health Products and
Technologies to Public health facilities.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, at fair
value, impaired assets at their estirnated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined
liabilities at their present va1ue.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shiliings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of KEMSA.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State

Corporations Act, KEMSA act 2013 and International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years

presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
New and amended standards and intetpretations in issue effectiae in the year endeil 30 lune

2027.

Other

Improvements to

ITSAS

Applicable: 1d january 2021:

a) Amendments to II')SAS 13, to include the appropriate references to

II'SAS on irnpairment, in place of the current references to other

international and/or national accounting frameworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and IISAS "17, Property, Plant, and Equipment.

Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should have

been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of Accrual Basis

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (II'SASs) was

approved.

c) II'SAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and IITSAS 26,

Impairment of Cash Generating Assets.

Amendments to ensure consistency of impairment guidance to account

for revalued assets in the scope of II'SAS 17, Property, Plant, and

Equipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible Assets.

d) IPSAS 33, First-tirne Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public

Sector Accounting Standards (If'SASs).

Amendments to the implementation guidance on deemed cost in

IITSAS 33 to make it consistent with the core principles in the Standard.

Ketn-:l*

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30,2021 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

n. Nezo anil ameniled standarils anil interpretations in issue but rot yet effectioe in the year

eniled 30 lune 2027.

IPSAS 41

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: 1"t |anuary 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of

financial assets and liabitties that will present relevant and useful inJormation

to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timjng and

uncertainty of an entity's future cash flows.

II?SAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful information

than IISAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classi{ication and measurement model for financial

assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the

objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forwardJooking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the

hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a

strong link between an entity's risk management strategies and the

accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IPSAS 42: Applicable: 1"t ]anuary 2023

Social Benefits
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting entity

provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The information

provided should help users of the financial statements and general purpose

financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity;

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity's financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

o

Amendments to

Other IISAS

resulting from

IrSAS 4'1,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: Lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IISAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when

II'SAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to II'SAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging

and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was

issued.

c) Amendments to IISAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when

IfSAS 4Lwas issued.

Amendments to IISAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial

instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently

omitted when IISAS 41 was issued.

,, 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

iii. Early ailoption of stanilards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended stand ards ttyear 2020 / 202-1.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

a) Revenue Recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

. Fees

KEMSA recognizes revenues from fees, when the event occurs and the asset recognition criteria are

met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay
the amoun! deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are

recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the asset will flow to KEMSA and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

. Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at
fair value and recognized on obtaining conhol of the asset (cash" goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits
or service potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of financial position and
realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has

been acquired using such funds.

i0 Revenue from exchange transactions

o Rendering of services

KEMSA recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion when
the outcome of the transaction can be estirnated reliably.

\4lhere the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are recoverable.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been trarsferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to KEMSA.

Interest Income

o

lnterest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The ef{ective yield discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income
each period.

KEMSA recognized income from tenants who inhabited its warehouses in the period ending 30m

June 2021. Rental income has been recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

b) Budget Information

The original budget for Fy 2020-2021, was approved by the National Assembly in June 2020.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance

with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added
to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conciude the
final budget.

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are

presented in a single statement to determine the needs of KEMSA. As a result of the adoption of the

accrual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or entity differences that would
require reconciliation between the actua1 comparable amounts and

the amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts.
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c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area

where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items
recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial
performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate

d) In-KindContributions

In-kind contributiors are donations that are made to the KEMSA in the {orm of support programs,
equipment, funds, plant and motor vehicles.

e) Ptoperty, Plant and Equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. \Ahen significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. A11 other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as

incurred. l4rhere an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominai consideration
the asset is initially measured at its fair vaiue.

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
imPairment losses. l4rhere re-measurement at re-valued amounts is desired, all items in an asset

category are re-valued through valuations carried out by independent external valuer. If the
carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase sha11 be
credited directly to revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

However, the hcrease shall be recognized in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a

revaluation decrease o{ the same class of assets previously recognized in surplus or deficit.

If the carrying amount of a class of assets is decreased as a result of a revaluatiory the decrease is

recognized in surplus or deficit. However, the decrease shall be debited directly to revaluation

surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that class

of assets.

Gains and losses on disposal of iterns of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and are

recognized in profit or loss in the income statement.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a Straight-
line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual value over its

estimated useIul life. The annual rates in use are:

Lease hold Land No depreciation

Buildings 2.5%

Motor vehicies 25%

Fixtures and fittings -12.5%

Furniture -12.50/.

Equipment 12.5Yo

Plant and Machinery -107o

Computers 33.3%

Intangible Assets 33.3%

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment

K€'ITL:I
aa?

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021 o

77



Ketn-:t
a Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. \Arhere the carrying
amount of an asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss

is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.

f) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software iicenses, and rebranding activities, which
are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortized
over the estirnated useful li{e of the intangible assets from the year that they are available for use,

usually over three years.

Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estirnated useful life of computer
software of three years.

A11 computer software is reviewed annually for impairment. ln/here the carrying amount of an
intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estirnated
recoverable amount.

g) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its
fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, import duties,
hansportation and handing charges, and is determined on the actual price method. After initial
recognitiory inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to the
extent that a class of inventory is distributed or

deployed at no charge or for a norninal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of
cost and current replacement cost.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

78



Ketn-:l
. aa2

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or
distribution.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an oudlow of resources embodying econornic benefits or service

potential will be required to settle the obligation and a retable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

lArhere the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recogrrized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtuaily certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of
any reimbursement.

l) Contingentliabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liabiiity, but discloses details of any contingencies in the
notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential is remote.

i) Contingent assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets

are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtua1ly certain that an in{1ow of economic benefits or service potential
will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are

recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
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k) Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Accumulated Funds

These are the realized surpluses over the years when the Authority was fully dependent on the
Nationai Government for its operations. The Accumulated funds were specifically meant for
cushioning the orgalization against any shordall in Grants in the subsequent years.

b) Revaluation Reserves

These arose from past revaluation of different classes of property, plant and equipment. The purpose
of the reserve is to cushion the authority against any decrease in the carrying amounts of the assets

arising from future revaluations.

c) Surplus/Deficit

These are accumulated surpluses from income and expenditures since the financial year 2010 /20LL.
The reserves are meant to finance future capitai expenditures e.g. Corstruction of Modern
warehouses in Nairobi and the Regional Depots.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounfing policy retrospectively. The effects of

changes in accounting poliry are applied prospectively iI retrospective application is irnpractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plars

are post-employment benefit plars under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate

entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributiors if the

fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement

benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution p1ans. The

defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annua11y on the projected unit credit method basis.

Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributiors on

proportional basis to aIl participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce

the post-employment benefit obligation.

n) Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the

date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at

the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange diJferences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at

rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized

as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
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o) Related parties

he Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually

or jointly, or to exercise significant inlluence over the Entity, or vice versa. Members of key

management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior

managers.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subiect to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank

account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial

banks at the end of the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term

cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which were not

surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

q) Comparative figures

liVhere necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

r) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant irnpact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.

5. SICNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with II'jSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the

end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability alfected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a signilicant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
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The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated

financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of

the Entity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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l.Transfers from the Ministry

Ministry of Health Amount

recognized to

statement of

financial

performance

Amount

deferred

under

deferred

income

Amount

recognize

din
Capital

Fund

Total

transfers

202O/2't

Prior year

2019/2020

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

GRANTS FROM MOH

OPERATIONS 125,000,000 125,000,000 390,739,996

GRANTS FROM MOH

DEVELOPMENT 252,500,OOO

Total Grants from National

Government 125,000,000 125,000,000 653,239,996

l.Transfers from the Ministy

GRANTS FROM MOH - OPERATIONS
GRANTS FROM MOH - DEVELOPMENT
Total Grants from National Govemment

w 2020-202-l

Kshs

125,000,000

2019-2020

Kshs

390,739,996

262,500,000
125,000 000 653,239,996

2. Public Contributions and Donations
F\ 2020-2027

Kshs
6,383,639

2019-2020

Kshs

8,044,545

Total Public Contributions and Donations 6,383,639 8,044,545

The recognized amount lelates to benefts that has accrued from use of d.onated Fbed Assets to the Authonty by S*ategic
Partners

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3. Net Assets

Sale Revenue -Pharmaceutical

Sale Rcvenue -Non-Pharmaceuticals

Sales Revenue -LEIC-Pharmaceuticals

Sales Revenue-UHC-Non Pharmaceuticals

Total sales revenues

Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales CGS fharms)
Cost of Sales {GS (ltlon-Phamrs)

Cost of Sales{G9UHC frharms)
Cost of Sales-CG9LTHC (l.Jon-Pharms )

Total cost of sales

Net Sales

w 20202027

Kshs

2,070,01.4,129

1.,998,080,253

2,398,910,944

1,755,828,455

2079-2020

Kshs

4,066,305,1.61.

3,813,485,429

1.,641.,519,411.

1.,060,396,995

1,853,919,861

1.,770,542,066
"t,849,244,865

1,431.,872,213

3,337,254,253

3,192,584,356

1.,324,"158,758

908/12,400

10,587,706,996

6,905,579,004

1,377,254,7n

8,762,709,768

1.,8r8,997,n8

The reaenue eamed and cost incuned in selling relates to sale of nredical commotlities to all ptrblic health

facilities in the counties and other supplemetary customus like Eaith Based institutions ard lhtiaersities.

lncluded in Cost of Sales is Ksh.1"91,870,834 rclating to Expired stocks and Ksh. 54,175,8L3 fot Donations.

4. Rendering of Services

Supply Chain Fees: -USAID

-Global Fund
.IJMCEF

-Ministry of Health

-Other Shategic Partners

w2020-20n
Kshs

400,376,053

936,352,570

20,831.,L42

777,204,106

8,720,338

2019-2020

Kshs

794,199,038

638,546,361.

21,691.,655

105,262,297

65,123,559

Total other income 7,543,484,208 1,624,822,909

This rcuenue relate to fees eamed for Procuremmt,W arehousing and Distribution serzsices rcnilered to KEMSA

Sffategic partuers as listed aboae.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Rental Revenue

Rental Income

w20202021

Kshs

11,205,348

20192020

Kshs

14,569,878

Total other income 11,205,348

Rentallncomeuasrcceil)ed fromKElilSAtenantsBollorcantlKenyaAiru)aysduingtheFiranciallear.

6. Finance Income

Bank Interest Received

Total other income

w 2020-2021.

IGhs

616,085,847

516,085,847

2019:2020

Kshs

489,361,413

489,367,413

This is income eametl lrom the funds in the Authoities bank c fte t accounts at negotiated interest rates.

7. Other Income

Proceed From Dsposal of Fixed Asseb

Sale ofTender Documenb

Sale of Waste Materials

Forex Realized Gain

Direct Revenue(MCP-Cost Recovery)

0ther Miscellaneous Income

Disposal of Fixed Asseb

Total other income

F\20202021

Kshs

11,461,706

50,174,089

2,663,323

20194020

Kshs

616,125

115,000

175,305

24,192,553

47,403,046

9,373,81,4

7,120,395

64,299,118 gg,996,ng

This are rcaenues eamed from othu sources as highlighted aboue
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Employee costs

Basic Pay

Overtime
Arrears
House Allowance
Acting Allowance
Bonus

Leave Allowance
Entertairunent Allowance
NSSF (Kemsa Part)
Gratui$r and Pensions

Committee Allowances
Special Duty Allowances
Trarsport Allowance
Other Taxable Benefits

Casual and Conhact Employees
Ex-Gratia Payments

Shift Allowance
Staff Seconded to Kemsa
Intemship Stipends
Total employee costs

w 2020-2021,

Kshs

810,404,905
"1"1 ,675 ,220

855,851
^t89,745,806

4,940,993

8,622,500

2,777,226

2,238,000
"144,396,940

11_,427,200

38,235

50,111,516

76,578,528

7,002,506

360,6^18

8,682,676

531,000

2019-2020

Kshs

705,408,504
"15,"t54,8"t1

2,978,872

169,L67,000

2,1_53,987

287,987

6,991,000

2,5"t4,000

2,088,600

96,136,078

10,548,000

45,405,000

77,379,032

21_5,780

485,91'L

2,329,686

7 ,709,051
2,467,396

7,264,329,720 r,083 ,420 ,635

The employee costs expanditurc for the financial year was Kshs 1.264 Billion zohich wos a 1000/o absorption of
the budget

9. Distribution Costs

Fuel and Oil for own Trucks
Maintenance of own Trucks
Irsurance and Govt. Levies
Hire of Transport
Outsourced Distribution Costs
Fuel and Oils
Vehicle Maintenance

Vehicle Irsurance & Govt. Levies
Fork Lift Maintanance
Fork Lift Fuel and Oils

Total distribution costs

F\ 2020-2021

Kshs

7,939,623

2,228,676

2,649,500

8't 4,569,353

20,806,907

13,299,735

373,230

3,622,426

59,351

859,488,800

2079-2020

Kshs

2,566,755

982,347

239,500

734,720,653
"18,347,761_

11,888,468

7,217,977

2,382,841
)o o))

772,369,557
The costs aboae relates to distibution of Health products and technoligies which e tity has outsourced for

programme and salc actioities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

10. lnsurance costs

MedicaI Premiums
Insurance Expenses - premiums
Iruurance Expenses - Policy Excess
Total insurance costs

w 202G2021

Kshs
"132,699,034

26,303,594

100,000
159,102,627

2079-2020

Kshs
78,215,81,3

14,201,361,

92,417,174

The cost relates to medical insurance for staff a d insurunce cooels for companus' assets

11. Rental expenses

Warehouse Rent
Hire of Space
Total rental expenses

Fv 2020-2027

Kshs
217,"175,902

217,775,902

2019-2020

Kshs
"18^1,460,317

2L,054
187,481,365

This cost telates to hired go doufl at Sufl flag properht iflaestment ltd and Kikora Ltd

12, Legal Expenses

Legal Fees

Total legal expenses

Fv 2020-2027

Kshs
99,993,837

2019-2020

Kshs
739,772,928

99,993,837 1,39,772,928

This expenditure relqtes to legal apeals qfld settlemeflt of court cases.

13. Utilities Expenses

Water and Conservancy Expenses
Electricity & Lighting Experues
Generator Fuel & Maintenance

Total utilities expenses

w 202G2021

Kshs
898,798

1,5,795,502

2,238,784

2019-2020

Kshs
"1,014,536

13,287,328

6,665,675
18,933,O84 20,967,539

14. Staff kavel expenses

Staff Travel Allowance - Local
Staff Travel Allowance - Intemational
Air Tickets
Hire of Taxi & Other Transport
Mileage Claims -Use Own Cars
Travel and other Related Expenses-Donor Funded

Total staff travel expenses

FA 202G2027

Kshs
174,895,237

4,417,670

4,707,265

2079-2020

Kshs
123,018,487

7,996,568

8,482,51,8

8,385,471.

11,030

7,050,485
"124,01,4,172 154,9M,559

The cost rcldtes to expenditure cluing sales and programme activities
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15. Firance costs

Bank Charges

Total finance costs

F\ 2020:2021,

IGhs

1,768,676

2019:2020

Kshs

2,189,997

r,768,676 2,189,997

16. Audit fees

Audit Fees & Others

Fv 2020:2021,

llshs

3,500,000

2019-2020

ItGhs

3,500,000

Total audit fees 3,500,000 3,s00000

17. Board expenses

w 20202021

IGhs

8,844,000

5,995,585

1,797,720

i,044,000

17,681,305

2019:2020

ll.shs

5,938,200

3,972,7M

1,044,000

10,954,944

18. Depreciation & amortization

Buildings - Depreciation

Plant & Machinery - Depreciation

Office Equipment - Depreciation

Fumiiute & Fittings - Depreciation

Computer Equipment - Depreciation

lntangible Assets - Depreciation

Motor Vehicles - Depreciation

Total depreciation & amortization

w 2020:2021,

IGhs

32,588,150

17,873,421

4,954,666

4,71,4,010

7,854/n
323,428

49,521,,674

117,830,125

2019-2020

IGhs

39,349,097

18,482,n4

6,476,835

6,109,941

37,813,346

66,000

52,881,105

161.,179,098

89

BOD Sitting & Lunch Allowances

BOD Travel & Accommodation Exp.

BOD Conferences

BOD Honorana & Other Allowances

Total BOD expenses
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19.Other Operating Expenses

Training Expenses

Conference Experses

Change Management Expenses

Recruiknent Agency

Official Entertainment
Office Beverages

End Of -Year Staff Staff Pariy

Staff Support Expenses

Purchase Of New Uniforms
Laundary and Cleaning
Telephone - Switchboard LLS

Telephone - Direct Land Lines

Cell Phones

E-mail/lntemet
Postage & Courier
Computer Maintenance Expenses

Computer Maintanance Agreement
Computer Software and Licenses

Computer Stationery Expenses

Hire of Services - Security Firms

Hire of Services From Police

Security Equipment
Cleaning Materiais & Implement
Pest Control Expenses

Outsourced Clening Expenses

Sanitation Experses

Plant Repairs & Maintenance

Repairs To Buildings and Roads

Purchase of Tools & Maintenance

Rates Paid To The Local Govt.

Reagents

w 2020-2021,

Kshs

76,787,066

7,940,795

2019-2020

Kshs

22,644,268

20,421,,n8

7,097,000

3,295,560

20,265,413

9,394,807

12,965,660

1,,935,392

1,420,352

75,840

3,375,805

8,909,348

7,956,657

787,285

6,1,68,072

2,405,372

7,757,855

9,308,922

11,,188,909

3,781,500

502,680

2,296,1,48

763,660

4,237,461,

2,605,070

264,877

3,028,533

1,877,378

2,042,224

76,927,555

6,900,734

9,424,000

4,430,335

11.,91.3

7900

3,370,128

250

9,509,500

4,774,667

577,304

2,M2,8-16

3,089,612

5,853,685

5,461,,473

1,5,776,1,87

3,441.,000

932,576

2,056,9s2

1.,1.27,802

4,667,764

593,782

803,743

3,576,840

1.,634,03L

1,,058,611,

8,639,560

90



Third Party Services

Maintenance Of QA Tools & Equipment

Palleting cost

Packaging Material and Expenses

Protective Clothing & Gear

Cost -Dsposing Damage Stock

Stationery Expenses

Office Expenses

General Admin expenses

Staff Subsscription Expenses

Statutory Subscriptions

Fire Fighting & Safety Equipment

Hire of Safety kaining Serv

Bank Charges And Commission - Realized Loss

Penalties And Fines

Consultancy

Public Relatiors Experses

Donations

Sponsorships

Shows And Exhibitions

Communication & krIor. Exp.

Advertising Expenses

Corporate & Other Calenders

Advertising Of Tenders

Publicity & Advertising Expenses

Newspaper Expenses

Joumals, Books & Periodicals

Total other operating expenses

7,41,5,293

2,783,07s

10,026,476

4,61,6,355

1,,970,279

9,419,029

3,604,308

2,091,497

3,196,819

3,202,500

6,559,486

2,883,8s0

160,190

1,,357,790

559,500

7,400,495

423,187

174,723,450

5,109,232

7,133,125

1,,260,200

1,,696,500

19,321,270

1,,332,144

7,1.40,000

14,525,043

862,391

2,995,655

13,926,615

5,804,764

77,862

1,364,241,

493,500

2,222,024

90,000

93,238,620

12,000

23,767,436

6,133,497

237,000

3,950,000

150,800

398,193;149
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11,,1,35,203

6,505,500

1,6,704,620

7,374,500

514,928

4t1,M0,778
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PETry CASH

NBK - OPERATIONS

WORLD BANK E.A LAB PROIECI

NBKD]SIREUTION

KCB DRUGS

KCB DISIREUTION

CBA

CO.OP. MEDICAL GRANIS

co-oP BANK GF OPERATIONS (KSFI)

co-oP BANK GF OPERATTONS (USD)

co-oP BANK GF ATM R4P1 (USD)

P BANK GF ATM R5P1 (USD)

P BANK GF ATM R6 (USD)

P BANK GF ATM R4P2 (USD)

co-oP BANK GF ATM R5P2 (USD)

COOP BANK GF ATM R7P1

COOP BANK GF ATM R4P2

COOP BANK GF ATM R5P1

co-oP BANK GF ATM R6 KSH)
CO-OP BANK GF ATM R7P1

WORLD BANK HSSP NON POOLED

WORLD BANK HSSP POOLED PROIECI

SSD COOP BANK

SSD EQIJ,]TY BANK

KEI\4SA EQUITY WAREHOUSE CONSTRUCTTON PROIECT

KEMSA EQUTY BANK OPERATIONS 6SH)
KEMSA EQLNTY BANK OPERATIONS (USD)

MPESABULK PAYMENI

Total cash and cash equivalents

w2020:202L

ll.shs

0

812,741.

18,843,438

70,432

412,412,454

1.,221

262,789,312

1.,243,065,882

66,665,526

339,857,900

7,920,371

1,959,66s

125,683

9,760

11 \7\

7,092,339

909

1,069,586

1,029,785

4,195,195

174,107

40,480,896

1,351,267,598

3,237,732,786

1.,077,171.,295

1,,657,647

43,558,621

1.,467

8,173,988,990

2019:2020

Kshs

22,659

6,371.,491

29,065,065

96,679

566,731,869

2,412

1,240,139,032

1,615,789,011

98,646,638

186,199,163

1,915,053

1.,943,211.

131,80s

6,658

29,768

7,012,704

905

1,065,051

1,025,419

4,181,004

177,679

38,097,575

1,100,010,909

4,799,287,198

579,863,638

36,7n,924

138,932,065

5

10,453,5n,589

92

20 a. Cash and Cash Equivalents
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w 2019-2020

Kshs
t7 ,734,238,206

3,947 AO7
93,793

20 (a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Curent accounts
Cash on Hand and On Transit
Total cash and cash equivalents

w 2020-2021

Kshs
8,"113,988,990

(0)

2019-2020

Kshs
"10,453,499,930

22,659
8,113,988,990 10,453,522,589

21. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Trade Debtors -Receivable
Supplier prepayment

Total receivables from exchange transactions

F\ 2020-2021

Kshs
5,756,958,122

1,06,842,572
5,863,800,694

2019-2020

Kshs
6,483,41,4,850

"121,774,697

6,605,7A9,547

22, Receivables from Non Exchange Transactions

Other Debtors - Uninvoiced Receivables
Travel Irnprest Debtors
Staff Salary Advances Debtors
Standing Imprest Debto!
Staff Medical Advances
Staff Accountable Imprest
Rent Deposit
Interest Receivable
Total receivables from non exchange transactions

w 2020-2021

Kshs

23,802
186,708

22,700
2,196,128

20o,o0o'

7,800,775

2019-2020

Kshs
523,509,924

2

1,86,713

0

2,412,664

2,262,383'

528,37"t,687

23. Inventories

Medical Supplies-Pharmaceutical & Non Pharmaceutical Stocks

Consumable stores-Stationery
Consumable stores-Beverages & Others

F\ 2020-2021

Kshs
17,554,455,351,

2,939,878

1,134,706
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value 77,558,529,935 17,738,279,406

Out of stock aalue ol khs 17,554,455,351 the mtity is holiling 3il party stocks aalueil at ksh 7,063,985,435 and
Ksh 5,511.,378,634 fol Cooid-1g Commodities

4,430,174

93
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24. Long Term Receivables from Non Exchange Transactions

Long-term Deposit
Total long term receivables from non exchange transactions

Kshs
w 2020-2021

Kshs
53,815,430

2019-2020

Kshs
48,51,5,430

53,815,430 48,515,430

These qre rcntql ileposits paid for roarehouses that the Authoily has renteil to store meilical commodities

25.Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Trade Creditors - Medical
Trade Creditors - Not Invoiced Receipts
Trade Creditors - Operatioru
Trade Creditors - Distribution
Trade Creditors - Development Partner's Grants
Rent deposit's - tenants
Withheld vat
Vat output - due
Withheld tax- corsultancy
Withheld Tax - Rental Ircome
Suppliers Funds Retained
Total trade and other payables from exchange transactions

F"t 2020-202:t

Kshs
2,786,573,806

2,588,017,506

180,7U,1,94
"t12,882,794

"t,322,458,8.1,6

3,032,428
(1)

(0)

0

0

21,,639,338

201y2020
Kshs

2,930,24'1,U7

2,742,577,146

80,990,560
(0)

1,100,301,588

3,032,428

(1)

64,174

0

0

22,441,620
7,015,398,881 6,879,649,362

Out of 7.02 Billion liabilities there is a liability thqt rehtes to COVID supplies aq.lued ot 2.5 Billion thqt haue
been deliaered but not pairl for since Fa 20-27 ,there is also a liability for balance o/ funds meaflt to pay
&oaemmeflt taxes z,alued at 1.3 Billion

NSSF PAYABLE
PAYROLL CONIROL
PAYE IMPREST PAYABLE
THIRD PARTY LOAN RECOWRIES
EMPLOYEE IMPREST PAYABLE (REFUNDS)

WITHHELD TAX.CONTRACTORS
EMPLOYEE PAYABLES

26.Trade and other payables from non exchange transactions w2020-m27
Kshs

1

(5)

13,200

(0)

L,147

1

2,746,989

2079-2020

Kshs

Total payables from exchange transactions 2,761,333

27. Payments lleceived in Advance

Customer Prepayment

Fv 2020-2021

Kshs
3,025,8n,078

2019-2020

Kshs
7,594,224,973

Total Prepayment 7 ,594,224,973

These are funds receiaed in adaance by the AuthoitA flom custorrlers like the Ministry of Health for IIHC-Scale
Up- to procure nudical comnoditics.

94

3,025,877,O78
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28. Current Provisions

Balance Brought Forward

Additional Provisions

Provision Utilized
Total provisions

w 20202021

lGhs
"117,961.,863

1.67,673,093

(117,961,863)

767,673,093

2079-2020

Kshs

82,674,496

117,961,863

(82,674,496)

117,961,863

29. Project Fund

EAPHLNP Cash Balance

Less: Cummulative bank interest eamed on EAPHLNP Account

Add: Interest refundable to DANIDA
Total project fund

w 2020-2027

Kshs

18,843,438

(17,343,918)

38,224,31t

2019-2020

Kshs

29,065,065

45,723,83L

30. Medical Commoditu Fund

Mcdical Commodity Fund

Total medical commodity fund

F\ 2020-2027

Kshs

9,356,1t0,7"19

2019-2020

Kshs

8,920,21.4,768

9,356,110,719

31. Defened income

Public Contuibution and donatiors (Current Portion recognized from

Donated Assets)

F\ 2020-2027

lGhs

798,174,974

20192020

Kshs

58,"146,334

Total deferred income 58,746,334

The Authoity has recognized the absorption of the Grqnt ftom Gbbal fund as work in progress on the funils paid

to the suppliu by the Global fund-at the NationalTreasury.

95

29,065,065

8,920,214,768

798,174,974
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The delemd income morement is as follonr:

Nationalgovemment

Inhmational

funders

Publi(

contributions

and donations Total

Balanre bmu$tforllard 58,146,334 58,146,334

Additons 7t6t1liln 74r,,412,2n

Trarufers to Gpitalfund

Irarsfers to inmme statement 6,383,63935 6J83,639

0thertamfers

Balanre canied forward n8,174fi4,0. n8,174fi4

32. KEMSACapital

Balance at the end of the Financial Year

FY 2020.2021

Kshs

8,461,,576,303

20194020

Khs

8,461,576J03

TotalKEMSA Capital

96

8,461,576,303 8A61,,576,303
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33(a) Prope.ty, Plant and Equipment as at rUNE 2021
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33 (b) Intangible Assets

COMPUTI]R
SOF'I]WARE INTAN(JIBI,Ii 'rotALs TOTALS

130,204,494 12,340,670 142,545,5O4 3,544,33O.232.24

12,34O,610 1-42,585,5/)4

r30,204,494 12340.670 142.585,504 3.874.27 3.756.13

12.437,61O.OO)

194,000 19a,OOO 557 ,300,883.20

130,204,49{.00 t2,574,610.OO 142,743,504.00 4,429,'t37.O29.37

(92O.000,00)

\.304,474,746-92

5,732,695,816.29

(2,612,00O.00)

7,366,O33,717 .67

r 30,204,491.O0 72,574,61(J 00 112,7a3,5O1.OO 7,O96,11? ,527 .96

(236.67A,711 .43)

964,164,992.45

13O,2O4,894.OO

-

E

-

172,937,s9't.6Ot
323,427.74 323,427.711 117,830,124.51

130,204,494.00 1-2,902,O37 .74 143,1O6.931.7a 652,342,O44.O4

6344,530,304.92

5,7 37.685,566 .33

132,OOO.OO 3,964,470,644 .27

3,535,246,933 .37

98

130,204,494_00 12,574,6tO.OO 142,7a3,501rl0

3,881,133.31 3,441,133.31

142,743,5l)1 .OO

T
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33c. Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts

would be as follows:

34,Prcperty, Plant and Equipment at Cost

Property plant and Equipment includes the foilowing assets that are fully depreciated

Cost NBV

Kshs Kshs Kshs

Land -t 
,506 ,977 ,026 .37

Buildings -r,303,686,469.09 17"t,227,2L8.17 1,L32,459,250.92

Plant and machinerv 216,402,273.01 90,757,088.07 125,645,184.94

Motor vehicles, including motorcycles 248,345,704.50 155,337,945.8"1 93,007,758.69

Computers and related equipment 48,4-12,01.8.70 26,360,775.27

Office equipment, furniture, and fittings 99,294,040.60 43,500,841.52 55,793,"t99.08

3,449,478,307.54 509,235,112.27 2,940,243,795.27

Normal

Cost or depreciation

valuation

Plant and machinerv 2 2

Motor vehicles, including motor cycles 0 0

Computers and related equipment 77,509,089.00 5,836,363.00

Office equipment, furniture and fittings 31 31

Total t7 ,509,-t_22.OO 17 ,509 ,1.22.00

99

Accumulated
Depreciation

't,506,977,026.37

74,772,793.97

annual

charge
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35. Cash Generated from Operations

w 2020-202L 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Surplus for the year before tax 401.,691.,740 L,663,393,620

Adjusted for

Depreciation 1.L7,830;1.25 L6't,179,098

Gains and losses on disposal of assets 943,875

Decrease/(Increase) in Current Assets L,M5,089,696 (8,234,224,923\

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities (3,927,57L,096\

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income 740,028,640 18,044,s45\

(1.,222,930,896) 5,526,153,9L4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. Financial Risk Management

The Authority's activities expose it to a vadety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign curency. The Authority's overall risk management programrne
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimize the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The entity
does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers
with an established credit history.

The Authority's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in fuil when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments.

l

Working Capital adjustments

11.,942,906,788

Net cash flow from operating activities

100
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Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk lirnits are set based on internal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated
by the Authority's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained is made up as follows:

The ageing of accounts receivables that explain the Authority's exposure to credit risk as at 30th Jurre
2021 was made up as follows:

101

o

Credit risk
Total amount Fully pedorming Past drre

IfttN IGtN IfuK

Impaired

Ituhs

As at 30 June 2021

Receivables tom exctrarge tramactions

Recervables fom non exchange transactions

Bank balances

l 489,55 r,996

0,314

8,990

4,362,647,514 0.00

0.00

0.00

L t')

8 113,98

13,970,608,814 9,607,961,300 4,362,647,514 0.00

As at 30 June 2020

Rece ables tom exctnnge hansactions

Receivables tom non excharge tarsactions 
I

Bark balances

Total

6,9]L,t96,221

528,371,687

10,453,522,589

17,893,090,497

2,462,520,947

528,371,687

10,453,522,589

13,444,,415,223

4,448,675,274 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.004,448,615,27 4

5,852,199,5101

4,42W141

8,113,9S8,9901
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Trade Receivables:
FX 202012021 FX 20t9[2020

-by rp to 30 days 810,240,836 1,289,179,419

-by 31.-60 days 320,891,317 726,636,908

-by 61-90 days 358,419,843 446,704,170

-Over 91 days 4,448,675,274

5,852,199,510 5,91L,L96,221

The board of directors sets the Authority's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated. The Authority has an
established credit poliry which stipulates the standard payment terms and conditions. However, in
specific cases especially when transacting with Development partners, the Memorandum of
Understandings (MOUs) signed by both parties are used to define applicable credit terms. The credit
risk is 1ow since the customers are primarily public institutions, development partners and faith based

organizatioru. The Management has the responsibility of managing the Authority's credit risk. The
carrying arnount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate resporsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Authority's directors, who have
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Authority's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity manages

liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actua1 cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the entity under non-derivative financial liabilities
by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not signi{icant.

The following are the conkactual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

toz

4,362,647,514



Liquidity Risk
0-30 Days 31-90 Days Over 90 Days Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 30 |une 2021

Trade payables
Creditors-Not invoiced
Receipts
Development Parkrers
Rent Deposits- Tenants
Stale Cheque
Retentions
Customer Prepayments
Provisions
Total
As at 30 June 2020

Trade payables
Creditors-Not invoiced
Receipts
Development Partners
Rent Deposits- Tenants
Stale Cheque
Retentions
Customer Prepayments
Provisions

1,,604,213,725."13 935,252,673."t5 540,774,394.82

2,588,077,506.00

"1,322,468,8t6.37

3 ,032,427 .50

3,080,240,793."t0

2,588,0t7,506.00

1,322,468,8t6.37

3,032,427.s0

748,977,106.82
1,,753,184,83'1,.95

89,276,1,65.O0

1.,024,528,838.1,5

27,639,338.00 2t,639,338.00
2,936,600,913.49' 3,025,877,078.49

78,707,986.00 767,673,092.82
7,431,,235,382.18 1,0,208,949,052.28

6,780,844,34t.34

774,461,863.00

456,967 ,753.40

78,"167,878.82

2,742,577 ,146 .00

1,100,301,587.68

3,032,427.50

22,441,,620.41

356 ,41,2,878 .36

3,500,000.00

3,O1,1,,232,407.85

2,742,577,1_46.00

1,1,00,30-t,587.68

3,032,427.50

22,441,,620.47

7,594,224,973.1,0

777,967,863.00
Total 9,347,487,1,60.07 937,857,326.70 4,306,433,538.77 ^14,591,,772,025.54

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

iii) Market risk

The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the entity
on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal accounting and
operational controis.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates which will affect the Authority's income or the value of its holding of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Overall responsibility for managing
market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Comrnittee.

The Finance Department is responsible for the development of a detailed risk management policies
(subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Comrnittee) and for the day to day

implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the Authority's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposuies. Such exposure arises through purchases of goods
and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. The Authority's poliry is to
record transactions in foreign currencies at the rate in effect at the date of the transaction- Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange in effect

at the reporting date. A11 gains or losses on changes in currency exchange rates are accounted for in
pro{it or loss. Consequently, the Authority's exposure to exchange risk is minimal. In light of this, the

directors are of the opinion that any sensitivity analysis with respect to the foreign exchange exposure
would be un-precedent.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Authority's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

result of changes in interest rate levels. The Authority's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.

This exposes the entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly
from interest rate movements on the Authority's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavored to bank with institutions that offer
favorable interest rates. Interest from short term deposits is one of the significant sources of revenue
for the authority. The Authority's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates

primarily to probability of reduction in finance income if interest rates were to go down significantly.
The average interest rate in the financial year 2020 / 2021, was 8%.

Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as

a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

LO4



2020-2021 2019.2020

Ituhs Ifths

Revaluation reserue 783,630,456 783,630,456

Retained eaminp 8,851,940 ,162 8,613,989,542

Capitalreserue 8,461,576,303 8,461,576,303

Totalfunds 18,097,147,521,06 17,859,19 6,300, 76

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3T.Contingent Assets

The following Assets which are in Financial Statements have Ownership disputes

(i) EMBAKAST GREEN SITE LR NO 21919

In lanuary 2019 Kenya Air Ports Authority filed a complaint before the National Land Commission
seeking revocation of several parcels oI land excised from land parcel No. LR 21919 which is registered
in favor of Kenya Air Ports Authority. Among those parcels of land include LR No. 28464 and 28465
which was Registered in favor of KEMSA. Upon hearing the complain! the National Land
Comrnission recomrnended revocation of inter alia KEMSA's title over LR No. 28464 and 28465 and
issuance oI a sublease instead.

KEMSA instructed its lawyers to move to court and challenge the recomrnendations made by National
Land Commission. Judicial review proceedings were instituted before the Environment and Land
Court being Judicial Review application No. 91 of 2019 filed on 28th March, 2019. The matter is still in
court.
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2020-2021 2019-2020

Kshs Kshs
CONTINGENT ASSETS

EMBAKASI GREEN SITE LR NO 21919 I10,000,000 I 10,000,000

KAKAMEGA GREENSITE ALLOTMENT LETTER
209163/A1t

7,500,000 7,500,000

KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCK B/128 0

NYERI MUNICIPALITY/ BLOCK 3/ 11 7 7,500,000 7,500,000

Total 125,000,000 125,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Authority proposes that the recomrnendations by National Land Comrnission be complied with
and negotiations with Kenya Airports Authority be embarked on for issuance of a sublease in favour
ofKEMSA.

(ii) KAKAMEGA GREENSTTE ALLOTMENT LETTER 209163/A11

KEMSA had earlier been allocated a parcel of land in Kakamega in October 2002 via Allotment letter
ref No. 209163/A11. Kakamega County government later developed a referral hospital on the land.
KEMSA has since sought for compensation and discussions are ongoing with the county govt of
Kakamega to have an alternative parcel of land identified and allocated to KEMSA.

The Authority is 100% owned by the Government of Kenya. The Authority's main related parties are

the Govemrnent of Kenya - Ministry of Health and the County Governments. KEMSA's core business

is procurement warehousing and distribution of medical supplies to public health facilities.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other or exercise

signilicant influence over the other party in making financial or operationai decisions. During the year
the following transactions were carried out with related parties.

105

iii) KTSUMUMUNTCTPALITYBLOCKB|1aS

KEMSA had earlier been issued with a parcel of land in Kisumu whose land reference number is
KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCKB /128by way of 99-year Lease from 01"t October, 2005. The Lease
was issued to the Authority. However, it eroneously indicated that the Lease is issued in favour of
the Cabinet Secretary to the Treasury (as trustee for the Ministry of Health), a body corporate duly
established under the Cabinet to the Treasury Act (Cap 102) of the laws of Kenya. The Authority
instructed counsel to make an application to correct the error and have KEMSA registered as the
proprietor. The said counsel advised that on following up the issue with the lands registry in Kisumu,
it transpired that the said land is registered as above and is also registered in the name of another
individual and the matter is with the DCI (Frauds Unit)-Kisumu.

iv) NYERIMUNICIPALITY/BLOCK3/113

Part of KEMSA's Land in Nyeri Ref; Nyeri Municipality /Block 3 / 1L3 was grabbed by
a private developer. The matter has been reported to the Ethic and Anticorruption
Commission EACC

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS



Related Party Transactions

Purchase of Electricity from KPLC

Purchase of Water from Gov't Service providers

Sale of Medical Commodities to Public Health
facilities

Board Expenses

Key Management Compensation

2020/2021.

Kshs

125,000,000

'14,718,124

898,798

8,222,833,780

1.7,662,305

73,287,9L5

20L9/2020

Kshs

653,239,996

13,287,328

1,014,536

10,581,706,996

"10,954,944

6"t,82t,2L7

T'OTAL 8,454,400,922 lt ,322,025,0L7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39. DISCLOSURE ON PPE MOVEMENT SCHEDULE

Disclosure on correction on PPE Movement Schedule

The Authority undertook 100% verification of assets in the FY 2020 / 202-l to ascertain the
physically available assets owned by the Authority. The exercise resulted to prior year
adjustment recornmended by the Authority to be adjusted prospectively fromFY 2020 / 2021..

IPSAS 3 recommends rehospective correction of errors, however it provides for limitations
of rehospective adiustment under paragraph 48 that "A prior peiod error shall be corrected by

retrospectioe restatement, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine either the period-

specifc effects or the cumulatizte effect of the enor" . The errors herewith recorded by the Authority
related to disposals done in previous years as "lots" and revaiuation done as batches under
some classes of assets and could not be attached to some specific asset tags in the register.
This has made the exercise impracticable to determine the specific assets from the asset

register that were aheady disposed and those that were revalued with new prices in the prior
years. The prior year's disposals of assets were physically done, however not done on the
system/fixed as assets register. In additiory the items sold, as "lots" do not have records of
the asset tags disposed hence could not be removed from the asset register individually on
specific periods. In addition, assets disposed as lots, had been mixed with waste materials
and had been paid for as a whole, in such cases prices could not be separated and apportioned
to specific asset for proper disposal in the ERP/ Asset register.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

This necessitated prospective correction on the opening balances of the PPE movement
schedule and the opening balances of the Statement of Statement of Changes in Net Assets.

The Authority has since developed a fixed asset policy as internal control to guide fixed
management in the Authority. The Authority has further completed development of a robust
fixed Asset Module that will be used to record all movements of all fixed assets

40 DISCLOSURE ON DONATED MOTOR VEHICLES FROM PSI KENYA

Population Services Kenya donated two motor Vehicles to KEMSA after completion of the Health
Communication and Marketing Project (HCM) funded by USAID that ended on May 2021.The
transfer was formaiized through an agreement dated 25e March 2020 signed by the CEO and Chief of
Party HCM Project and the CEO KEMSA. The vehicles were donated on condition that KEMSA would
pay for the government taxes and levies required related to the hansfer of ownership which included
customs duty since the vehicles were previously tax exempt. The vehicles included a Toyota
Landcruiser Hardtop and a Toyota Hilux Double Cab pickup. The Authority paid the required taxes,

acquired ownership documents and recognized the vehicles in the asset register.

II'SAS 23 under paragraph 97 prescribes friat'donstions inclurling goods in kind are measured at their fair
ztalue ns at the date of acquisition tuhich may be ascertnined by reference to an actiue market or by apprnisal. An
nppraisal of thz ztaltrc of an asxt is normally unrlertal<en by a member of tht onluation profession toho holds s

recognized tnd relertant professional qualifcation'. For purposes of recognition of the Assets in the Fixed
Asset Register, the Authority recognized the value of donated Assets using the insurance valuation
report and the customs duty paid. The Authority is organizing with the Ministry of Transport,
Infrastructure, Housing and Urban development tLuough the Mechanical and Transport division for
the valuation of the Motor Vehicles as it awaits the completion of transfer, re-registration and
valuation by the relevant ministry.

41. DISCLOSURE ON GLOBAL zuND GRANT

The Authority has commenced construction of the Nafional Commodity Storage Center, Project Ref
No: 1081101. Global fund is currently supporting the Authority on the proiect to the tune of Ksh. 973

Million as a grant through the National Treasury. The Authority has recognized the absorption of the
Grant from Global fund as work in progress on the funds that have been paid to the supplier by the
Global the supplier to the tune of KSh.736,662,279 Million.

42. DISCLOSURE ON SALE OF COVID-19 COMMODITIES

The Cabinet approved the disposal of Covid-19 commodities at the prevailing market prices. There
has been material reduction on market prices of these commodities. Also approved was a write off of
Ksh 2.0 Billion against the comrnodities, however KEMSA had requested authority to write off Ksh
4.46 Billion which was estimated using the prevailing Market Prices as at June 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Approval of Ksh 2.0 Billion may not be adequate to support the anticipated actual loss of the

commodities using current prevailing prices. KEMSA has written back to the Principle Secretary

Ministry of Health for corsideration. In addition, - KEMSA has engaged the Kenya National Bureau

of Statistics to conduct a market survey that will inform the current prevailing Market prices.

43. DISCLOSURE ON TAX DEMAND NOTICE

The Kenya Revenue Authority served KEMSA with a Demand Notice dated 17ft December
2020 of a total amount of Kshs 461,558,874.

The demand notice is based on the Audited Financial statements for the financial years
2015/201,6,201,6/2017,2017/20L8 and 2018/2019, where a 30% Corporation tax has been
applied on some revenue items in the financial statements.

After receiving the demand notice, KEMSA and KRA scheduled for a meeting to reconcile
the assessment.

The first meeting between KEMSA and KRA was done in the month of May 2027 in a bid to
reconcile the Tax Obligation.

On 22"d September 2021, KEMSA received another assessment from KRA for Corporation
Tax with a revised claim of Ksh. 7,547,576,106.48 and inJormed the Authority for need a
working meeting at KEMSA premises to review and deliberate on the pending issues.

The KEMSA management after receiving the second assessment sought professional opinion
from the Office of Auditor Generai on 20e January 2022. In consultation with the OAG the
Authority came up with reconciliation of corporation tax amounting of Ksh.274,553,747.69
which was calculated using the direct method. This amount is exclusive of penalty and
interest. However, OAG expressed a request of the final assessment.

From the meeting KEMSA decide to schedule a meeting with KRA and AOG held on 17m

March 2022 where there was a lengthy discussion and the following outcomes were
considered.

1. KEMSA to deliberate and agree on a payment plan and advise KRA on first instalment
for Kshs.274M payable on account

2. KEMSA to provide a schedule of buildings and machinery so that inspection can be
undertaken and agree on the appropriate date to undertake inspection;

3. KEMSA would consult KRA on exempt non-pharmaceuticais supplies and provide a list
to seek guidance.

4. KEMSA to ensure that current taxes are remitted on time.
5. Once reconciliation was completed, KEMSA would file amended returns.
6. KEMSA should provide to KRA, copies of the exemption certificates from the

development partners as claimed.
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7. Provide evidences of fee notes and remittances on account of withholding taxes for
consultancy and 1ega1 fees.

8. Reconcile schedules for al1 taxes as provided by KRA prior to finai exit meeting.
9. Provide breakdown on amounts paid on account of repair to building and roads. If paid

to contractors then tax is withheld at 3%.
10. Both teams would engage and the final exit meeting would be held in a month's time

where the final assessment would be presented.

Why Tax Obligation; The background of the non payment of Corporation Tax and VAT is
premised on KEMSA ACT SECTION PART III-FINANCIAL PROWSIONS which states
that;

Funds of the Authonty.

(3) Unless Treasury otherzLtise directs, the balance

of the funds of the Authoity at the end of the financial year

shall be retained for the purposes for zohich the Authoity is

Established.

\Arhereas, the Authority has a current Tax Compliance Certificate issued on 06/07 /2027. The
Management wishes to inform the Auditors of the following;

(1) In case the KRA decides to go ahead with the demand notice, KEMSA will not be able to
make the tax settlement due to cash flow challenges, and will require support from the
Exchequer through the Ministry of Health. The risk resulting from this demand is possible
aggression from KRA to progress to freeze KEMSA accounts, however the management
believes that the Authority has not reached this this stage.

(2) The VAT implication on the cost of medical commodities will be additional cost on the
current state of the Authority which will worsen the current Financial Health and worse
is increase medical cost for the entire country.

(3) No sufficient Budget in the recurrent Budget for FY 2021. / 2022 for Corporation Tax and
VAT

The Authority has since written to the Ministry of Health requesting for intervention in
seeking waiver on the tax and penalties from The National Treasury.
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From the meeting held on 17ft march 2022, KEMSA has provided all the required documents
and schedules to KRA and team is awaiting the final assessment from KRA.
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The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)
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1T4. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

KEMSA is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Health. Its ultimate parent is the Government of
Kenya.

45. CURRENCY
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APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comrnents that were provided to the auditor. We have
nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be
resolved.

Reference
No, on the
extemal

audit
Report

Issue/ Observations from Auditor Management comments

Status:

(Resolaeil/Not
Resoloed)

Timeframe:

(Put a date
tuhet yort
exped the
issue to be

resolaeil)

1,

The accuracy and validity of the net
sales balarce of Kshs.7,818,997,228
for the year ended 30 june 2020

could not be confirmed.

KEMSA's business model is "PULL" system where
counties, other public health, and Faith based
facilities determine what they require and buy the
same. After devolution, the entire public health
supply chain system moved from push to PULL and
some commodities athacted little or no demard from
these facilities. These commodities have over time
exhausted their shelJ life and hence becoming
obsolete.

Resolved

2

The Authority had nine hundred
and twelve (912) ernployees as at

30 ]une 2020 agairut an approved

staff establishmert of three hundred

and fortyone (341) resulting in un-

approved and urexplained over

establishment of five hulrdred and

seventy-one (571) officers. No

The factors that contributed towards the increase

in the number of staff are

1. Implementation of the new business

model to support t}te devolved county
health facilities.

2. Implementation of the Government's Big Four
Agenda

LLz
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approval was availed to support
the over establshment of 571

officers.

The above two factors necessitated the engagement of
short term staff on contract basis to enable KEMSA
effectively respond to the county
demalrds/workload.

It was observed that five (5) officem on
secondment from the Ministry of
Hea.lth have served the organization for
a period of more than 6 years conhary
to section 13.33 (1) of the Public
Service Commission Human
Resource Policy

The Authority had earlier on vide its lettrer Rel No.
KEMSA/S|IHR/20 / 02/'19 datr.,d 20th February

2019, written to the Principal Secretary/MOH
requesting the Ministry to tal<e back the seven (7)

seconded staff. Out of the seven MOH employees,

only two (2) sUff were recalled/taken back by the

Ministry, leaving behind the other five (5).

Not resolved JUNE 2022

I

The outsourced costs indude amount of
Kshs.75,000,000 captured vide journal
re\ASA-N4'19/20 and
Kshs.84,500,000 KEMSA-ry42-19/20
disclosed as accrual of disrribution
expenses for the month of lune 2019

lune 2020 respectively. It could not
therefore be confirmed why the
Authority accrual the expenditure
irstead of caphring the actual
invoices.

The amount of Ksh. TSMiIIion was an estimated cost of
distributing commodities for the month of Jurre 2019.

This was arrived at based on the Suppliers' statement
as of 30e June 2019. In the year under review, fV-6
19/20 was a reversal of the accrual done in FY 2018/19
since the actual invoices were expected to be received
within the year 20^19 /2020. As demonshated in the
attached schedule, tlere was no significant variance
between the JV and total value of the invoices. For the
month of june 2020 distribution services were invoiced
after end of FY 2019/ 20, hence necessitating an accrua1

for the expenditure in the month of June 2020. The |V-
42-^19 /20 ot Ksh. 94.5Million was an estimated cost of
distributing commodities for the month of |une 2020.

This was arrived at based on the Suppliers' statement
as of 30th June 2020. there was no signficant vadance
between the fV and total value of the invoices

Resolved
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The Authority entered into a conhact
agreement with a Courier Services
Company on 24 September 2016 for
provision of courier services to health
facilities courtrywide. However, it was
nobd that from April2019 to SepEmber
2019, the firm was overpaid
Kshs.19,352250 and the amount had
not been recovered as at 30 June 2020.

This issue is under investigation and awaiting the

outcome, for further action. PaFents of the supplier's
pending invoices relating to the supplier are on hold
urltil conclusion of the matter.

Not resolved

6

Receivables from exchange
transactions balance of
Kshs.6,601,968,773 as disclosed at
note 18 to the financial statements
includes
receivables totalin g Kshs.4,97 4,367
317 comprising of Counties Ksfu.
2,848,869,44$ and, the Ministry of
Health Kshs.2,125,491,871 that have
been outstanding for more thalr
twelve (12) months and whose
recovery is doubtful

We concur with your observafion that as at 30th
June 2020, The County Governments owed KEMSA
a total outstanding debt of Ksh. 2,848,869,466-67.
We wish to inform you that as at 25h March ?027,
KEMSA has collected a total of Ksh. 2.234 Billion
from the counties against the debts outstanding as

at 30th Iune 2020.

Not resolved

tL4
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Included in inventories balance
of Kshs.16,057,902,180 as at 30

June 2020 is pharmaceutical and
non-pharmaceutical stocks balance
of Kshs.16,053,860980 which
includes stocks of
Kshs.8,022,572,378 in respect of
KEMSA capital stocks that also
include COVID 19 stock
amounting to Kshs.2,264,047,646.
It was however noted that the
Authority procured COVID items
amounting to Kshs.2632,065,588
during the year under review.
However, analysis and review of
store records revealed that stocks
amounting to Kshs.401,912,648
were issued and stock balances of
COVID 19 items as at 30 .[une 2020

stood at Kshs.2,264,047,646

compared to the expected balance of
Kshs.7 ,230,-152,940.

We wish to clarify that value of procurement of
COVID 19 items was Ksh. 7,632,968,223.53 and not
Kshs. 7,632,065,588 as captured in the query. As at
30 June 2020 the value of COVID 19 stocks stood at
Ksh. 5,736,405,163.33. Stocks worth Ksh.
"1 ,896,563,060 .20 had been issued out of the initial
procurement of Ksh. 7,632,968,223.53. However,
only stocks valued at Ksh. 3,959,375,534.75 werc
captured in the stock take valuation of Ksh.
16,053,860,980 leaving out a balance of Ksh.
"t ,777 ,029 ,628 .58 .
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As previously reported, the
property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.6,341,530,304 as at
30 June 2020 includes land at a cost
of Kshs.1,786,967,270 which
includes various parcels of land
spread across the country and
valued at Kshs.158,000,000 for
which the Authority does not
possess ownership documents.

Board has however engaged Priority Management

Limited, (Conveyance expers) and KTK Advocates to

handle the issue of realization of the titles deeds and is

following up on updates on issuance of tit.le documenb
from the respective lands regskies.

KEMSA does not possess documents to facilitate

processing of registration of the Meru land measr:ring 0.3

Has in its favour. The Authority has also reaJized that the

user of the subject parcel of Iand has been converted from
establishment of medical stores to establishment of a
stadium hence it is not foreseeable tlnt KEMSA will
acquire tide docurnents in respect of the land.

Not resolved
June 2022
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The property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.6,341,530,3M includes
motor vehicles net book value of
Kshs.80,472648 which include four (4)

vehicles with a net book value of
Kshs.410,083 that are owned by the
National Govemment.

KEMSA had requestied for transfer of ownership from
the Permanent Secrehry, Ministry of Health, copy of the

lelter altached (Appendix 6.2 - Copy of letter to MinistuA

of Hmlth rcquesting to transfer of GK notor xehicbs to
KEMSA and lelter froru MOH recalling 2 driters atd a
aehick registration numb er GK 9608).

The vehicle registration number GK 9608 was physically
released to the Ministry as soon as the request was
received. We acknowledge that no formal release letter
was provided to Finance Departrnent in order mal<e

adjushnents in the Asset Register.

Not resolved
306 June 2022

Included in the worl ir progress

balance of Kshs. 1,247,756,581 are

two contracts for pro posed
refurbishment of Mombasa
and Kisumu wareh ouses.
Contract No KEMSA/RT24-
20 -18-20-19, Mombasa
Warehouse and KEMSA/RT1-
20 78-2079, Kisumu warehouse

amounting to Kshs.26,458,460

and 30,667,730 respectively
which were awarded through
restricted tender on grounds of
urgency on 13 February 2019.

Work was to be completed on or

Restricted tendering was not used because the works
were urgent as the method that would have been
applicable in case of urgency ls Direct Procurement.
However, the choice of Restricted Tendering method
was ir line with Section 102 (1) (b) of the Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2015 which
envisaged that below some threshold it would not be

prudent to use the Open Tender method iI the cost
and time involved in processing the tender was
disproportionate to the value of the tender.
Regulations 2006 did not set the threshold and Ieft it
at the discretion of Procuring Entities to determine the
threshold below which to use this provision of the
Act. It was KEMSA's considered opinion that the
value of the tenders satisfied provisions ofSection 102
(1) (b) of the Act. lndeed Regulation 2020 have set the

Not Resolved

o
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before 30 April 2019. However,
by the time of the audit in
Iarluaty 2021, work had not
been completed although the
contract period had lapsed.

threshold under which this provision can be used at
Ksh 30 million.

11

Trade and other payables from
exchange hansactions balance of
Kshs.6,879,649,362 as at 30 June 2020

inclu des long ou l-sta nd ing
operation creditor s ol Kshs.36,227,9 40

that have been outstanding for a long
period of time. Furtrer, tre hade and
other payables from exchange

transaction balance include long
outstanding suppliers' funds
retained balance of Kshs.22,441,620
out of which Kshs ;10,977,837 is dated
1,JuJy 2A12.

1. The amount of Ksh. 9,858,300 is a retention for
Alliance Technologies Ltd after the
termination of the contract existing between
KEMSA and Alliance Technologies Ltd, due
to failure to meet obligations under the
conhact. Alliance Technologies sought legal
redress and the case is still ongoing, and as
stated in the Memorandum of Appearance,
civil suit No. 87, KEMSA has retained the
amount until the case is decided.

2. long outstanding operation creditors of
Kshs.36,227,94.0. Awaiting resolution of the
pending bills incurred during operation of the
consortium. The National Treasury-Global
Fund office is curently processing the
outstanding pending bills.

Not Resolved

Partiallv resolved

Pending Court
decision

June,2022

12

Note 28 to the financial statements

reflects medical commodity fund
balance of l<hs.7,239,837,543 as at

30 June 2020 comprising of thld-
party stocks balance of
Kshs.7,222,525,965 and global
funds account balance of artd

Kshs.-17,377,578. However,

It was realized that third party firnds i.e. funds held on
behalf USAID for payment of suppliers and un-spent
AIE's furrds received had been omitted in &e analysis.
We wish to confirm that the balance of the Medical
Cornmodity Fund as at 30h June 2020 was Ksh.
8,920,2^1 4,7 68.39. Tlle breakdown is as f ollows;

1. Third Party Stocks -Ksh. &m1348,661
2. Funds Held On Behalf Usaid For Paynent Of

Suppliers - Ksh. 55,383,69'1.94

Resolved
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Signature Date

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

supporting documents and

schedules for the two balances were

not availed for audit review.

Further it was noted that third-
parry stocks balance of
Kshs.72'1,525,965 differ with the

figure of third-party inventory
reflected in the financial statements

supporting schedule balance of
Kshs.8,031,348,661 resulting in
unexplained variance of
Kshs.808,822,696. Consequenfly, the

accuracy and validity of the medical

commodity fund balance of
IGhs .7 ,239 ,87 ,543 as at 30 June 2020

could not be confirmed.

3. Un-Spent Aie's Funds Received -Ksh.

816,170,837.30

4. Global Funds Account Balances Ksh.

17,311,578.15
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APPENDIX 2: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE STATE CORPORATION/SAGA FUNDED BY

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS

a
!

Project title Project Number Donor Period/ duration Donor

commitment

Separate donor

reporting required as

per the donor

agreement (Yes/No)

Consolidated in

these financial

statements

(Yesfitlo)

EAST AFzuCA

PUBLIC HEALTH

NETWORKING

PROJECT

KE-4732 WORLD

BANK

Start: |uly 05 2010

End: March 3L,2020

YES YES

USAID KEMSA MCP

PROGRAM
AID-615-C-15-00003 USAID Start; October 1't 2015

End : 30ft December

2020

NO YES
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APPENDIX 3: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Transfer from M nts and Aacnci.s (MDAs)

DE\/ELOPMENT CRANT

It[(]URRENT (;RANl'

9/9/2O79 Ministtu of Heatth 97 ,6U,999.q)
7427/2019 Ministrv of Health 97,644,999.@
4/t/2O2O MmEtry of Iicalth 97 ,6U,999.Cn
5/n/2020 Mihisttu of Healrh 97,544,999.(n

't2/ 3 /2020 Ministr of t lealth 125,000,000.00 125,000,000.00

1fi6/2020 Ministro of H.alth 131,250,000.00
131,250,000_00

,6rJ00,000-00
of Healdr4/27/2O20

DIRF,CT PAYMFNT

7/7/2020
Ministry of Health

1,s00,000,000.00 299,999.988.00

7 /A /2021)
Ministru of Health

175,000,000.00 5,799,Oa9.OO

7 /9 /2O2O
Ministru of Health

300,000,000.00 20,098,620.00

7 /9 /2O2O
Ministru of Health

304,160,118.00 58,000,915.00

7 /9 /2O2O
Ministry of Health

77 ,771,400.00 195,213,987.00
7/10/2O2A Ministry of Heal*r 50,375,000.00 931,373,369 _30

7/13/2O2O Ministry of Fleatth 20,381,515.00 50,375,000.00

7/13/2O2O
Minlstry of Health

9,889,451.00 245,000,000.00

10 /29 /2020
Mini-stry of l lealth

4,929 ,600.OO 8,956,350.00
12/7/2020 Ministry of Health 5,872,215.O0 2,7 56,682,278.09

12/2t /2020 Ministry o( Health 13,400,863.00 54.000,000.00

3/12/2021
Mmrstry of Health

200,000,000.00 486,000,000.00
3/12/202-l Ministw of Health 100,285,556.00 450,000,000.00

3/25 /2021 Ministry of Health ,r36,083.00 50,000,000.00
4/29 /202-l Ministw of Health 7 ,232,377 ,470 _OO 237 ,700,OOO.OO

5 /3 /2021 Ministrv of Health 59,000,000.00 2,875,365.OO

5/14 /2021 Ministry of Health 39 ,999 ,590.OO365,200.OO

s/19/2021 Ministry of Health 1s0,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
5/19/2A2\ Ministtu of Health 1,200,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
5/26/2021 Ministry of Health 68,090,405.65 100,000,000.00
6/23 /2041 Ministe of Health 116,753,445.25 100,o00,000.00

100,000.000.00Ministry of Health
Ministtu of Health 2,6A2,A52,A53.40
Ministru of Health 7,802,997 ,659 _80

Ministtu of Health 333,470,437 .30

tzt

N.drc o( thr. rinrily S.ndins
Amotrnrecognized to

CoDprehensive In.ode

AMOUN'I'
RTJCOGONIZED

Total Grantln(oae
dudnS th. quaner Prld ycar 2O79-2O2O

TOT'AL RtrCURIIENl" 125,000,000.00 125,000,000.00 390,7 39,996.OO

Nam€ of thc EndtySending
Aoomt re.ognlzed to

Cod|pr€heuive I!.06€

AMOUNT
RECOGONIZED

I or.l Gr.nt In(ome
P.tq yeat 2019-ZO2O

T'O'I'AL DIRECT RECEIFT 5,592,491, ,721 .90 11,8"tr,395,497 .49
TOTAL RECF,IPTS 5,717,491.721.9O 12,464,635,893.a9

I
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